BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 2" Annual Report on the business and operations of Piramal
Pharma Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘PPL’) and the Audited Financial Statements for the period ended March

31, 2022

(R in Crores)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
For the For the period For the For the period
financial year March 4, financial year March 4,
ended March 2020 to March ended March 2020 to March
31, 2022 31, 2021 31, 2022 31, 2021

Net Sales 3,094.95 2,938.81 6,559.10 6,314.90
Non-operating other income 223.59 197.97 275.80 164.11
Total income 3,318.54 3,136.78 6,834.90 6,479.01
Other Expenses 2,697.65 2,319.88 5,609.44 4,886.94
OPBIDTA 620.89 816.90 1,225.46 1,592.07
Interest Expenses 53.55 4,71 198.25 163.45
Depreciation 130.64 143.64 586.18 545.04
Profit before tax & 436.70 668.55 441.03 883.58
exceptional items
Exceptional items (12.47) 18.23 (15.08) 18.23
(expenses)/ Income
Income tax 81.18 115.28 109.01 114.02
Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax 343.05 571.50 316.94 787.79
and before Share of Net
profit of Associates and
Joint ventures
Share of Net profit of - - 59.03 47.24
Associates and Joint
ventures”
Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax 343.05 571.50 375.96 835.03
and after Share of Net profit
of Associates and Joint
ventures
Net Profit/ (Loss) Margin % 11.08% 19.45% 5.73% 13.22%
Basic EPS 2.91 9.11 3.19 13.30
Diluted EPS (/share) 291 9.11 3.19 13.30

*Income under Share of associates primarily includes Company's share of profits for Company's associates, as
per the applicable accounting standards.

DIVIDEND

The Board had declared an interim dividend of X 0.42 (Forty two paise) per equity share of face value of X
10 each, at the Board Meeting held on 10" November, 2021.




The Board has recommended a dividend of % 0.56 per equity share of the face value of X 10 each for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022. This is subject to approval of shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the period under review, the Company had:
1. Issued and allotted the following securities:

(@) 96,57,423 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each to Piramal Enterprises Limited
(‘PEL’) at a price of T 613 per equity share (including premium of ¥ 603 per equity share),
aggregating to ¥ 592,00,00,000 by way of conversion of existing payables by the Company to PEL;

(b) 39,88,262 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of X 10 each to CA Alchemy Investments
(erstwhile CA Clover Intermediate Il Investments) pursuant to conversion of Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares into equity shares;

2. Issued and allotted 17,76,65,757 bonus equity shares to the existing shareholders in the proportion of
1,000 (One Thousand) new fully paid-up equity shares for every 5,674 (Five Thousand Six Hundred
Seventy-Four) existing fully paid up equity shares held.

CHANGES IN SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Changes in subsidiaries, joint ventures and/or associate companies during the period under review are
annexed in Annexure A to this Report.

FINANCIAL DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), a statement containing
salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate companies in Form
AOC-1 is annexed as Annexure B to this Report.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

e Acquisition of Hemmo Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (‘Hemmo’): In June 2021, the
Company acquired 100% stake in Hemmo, an Indian manufacturer of peptide active
pharmaceutical ingredient, for an upfront consideration of X 775 crores and milestone linked
earn-outs.

o Composite Scheme of Arrangement: In October 2021, the Boards of Directors of PEL, the
Company, Convergence Chemicals Private Limited (‘CCPL’), Hemmo, and PHL Fininvest
Private Limited (‘PFPL’) approved a composite Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 230
to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
between PEL, the Company, CCPL, Hemmo, and PFPL and their respective shareholders and
creditors (‘Scheme’). The Scheme inter alia provides the following:

— the transfer by way of demerger of the Pharma Business from PEL to the Company,
and the consequent issue of equity shares to shareholders of PEL by the Company as
per the share entitlement ratio i.e. for every 1 equity share of face and paid-up value



of ¥ 2 each held in PEL, 4 equity shares of face and paid-up value of X 10 each in the
Company shall be issued by the Company;

— the amalgamation of CCPL and HPPL (both being wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company) into the Company;

— the amalgamation of PFPL (a wholly owned subsidiary of PEL) into PEL.

In April 2022, an application in relation to the Scheme was filed with the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT”), following the receipt from BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited of their ‘No objection’ in terms of Regulation 94 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 by their respective
Observation Letters. Pursuant to the aforesaid application, in May 2022, the order was
received from NCLT to convene meetings of the Equity Shareholder, Secured Creditors and
Unsecured Creditors of PEL for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving the
proposed Scheme. The Hon’ble NCLT granted dispensation from holding meetings of
shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors (wherever applicable) of the
Company, CCPL, Hemmo and PFPL.

The scheme is subject to the approval of the shareholders of PEL, creditors and regulatory
authorities.

e Stake in Yapan Bio Private Limited: In December 2021, the Company entered into
agreement and acquired an initial stake of 27.78% stake in Yapan Bio Private Limited for an
investment of T 101.77 crores. Yapan is a Contract Development and Manufacturing
Organisation in Hyderabad. Further, in April 2022, tentered into an agreement and acquired a
further stake of 5.55% in Yapan for an investment of % 20.35 Crores and thus the aggregate
stake in Yapan is 33.33%.

OPERATIONS REVIEW:

Standalone

Total income from continuing operations for FY 2022, increased by 5.79% to X 3318.54
Crores as compared to X 3136.78 Crores in FY 2021. Earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) for FY 2022 from continuing operations
decreased by 23.99% to X 620.89 Crores as compared to X 816.90 Crores in FY 2021. Net
Profit for the year from continuing and discontinuing operations was X 343.05 Crores as
compared to X 571.50 Crores in FY 2021. Basic and diluted earnings per share, from
continuing and discontinuing operations, was % 2.11 per share and % 2.11 per share,
respectively, for the year, as compared to X 9.11 per share each, during the previous year.

Consolidated

The Company’s revenue increased by 3.87% to X 6,559.10 Crores in FY 2022 as compared
to0 X 6,314.90 Crores in FY 2021*. The increase in revenue is primarily driven by increase in
Pharma segment. Revenue generated in foreign currencies are 53% of the Company’s FY
2022 revenue.



*For FY 2021, Company has published 13months financials for period March 4, 2020 to
March 31, 2021

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Piramal Healthcare Inc. [Consolidated]
Piramal Healthcare Inc. [consolidated] includes financials of its wholly owned subsidiaries Piramal Critical
Care Inc. and Piramal Pharma Inc.

Net sales of Piramal Healthcare Inc. [consolidated] for FY 2022 were at % 1,379.07 Crores. Profit before
interest, depreciation and tax for the year was at X 448.61 Crores. Piramal Healthcare Inc. [consolidated]
reported a net profit of X 175.53 Crores for the year.

PEL Pharma Inc. [Consolidated]
PEL Pharma Inc. [consolidated] includes financials of its wholly owned subsidiaries Piramal Pharma
Solutions Inc. and Ash Stevens LLC.

Net sales of PEL Pharma Inc. [consolidated] for FY 2022 were at ¥ 654.23 Crores. Loss before interest,
depreciation and tax for the year was at X 9.54 Crores. PEL Pharma Inc. [consolidated] reported a net loss
of T 64.79 Crores for the year.

Piramal Healthcare UK Limited

Net sales of Piramal Healthcare UK Limited for FY 2022 were at T 724.26 Crores. Profit before interest,
depreciation and tax for the year was at X 113.31 Crores. Piramal Healthcare UK Limited reported a net
profit of % 14.44 Crores for the year.

Piramal Healthcare (Canada) Limited

Net sales of Piramal Healthcare (Canada) Limited for FY 2022 were at X 306 Crores. Profit before interest,
depreciation and tax for the year was at X 85.14 Crores. Piramal Healthcare (Canada) Limited reported a net
profit of ¥ 71.89 Crores for the year.

Piramal Critical Care Limited

Net sales of Piramal Critical Care Limited for FY 2022 were at X 271.60 Crores. Profit before interest,
depreciation and tax for the year was at ¥ 27.39 Crores. Piramal Critical Care Limited reported a net loss of
% 93 Crores for the year.

Piramal Critical Care Italia S.P.A.

Net sales of Piramal Critical Care Italia S.P.A. for FY 2022 were at X 91.01 Crores. Profit before interest,
depreciation and tax for the year was at % 0.73 Crores. Piramal Critical Care Italia S.P.A. reported a net loss
of % 2.81 Crores for the year.

Piramal Critical Care South Africa (Pty) Ltd.

Net sales of Piramal Critical Care South Africa for FY 2022 were at X 32.95 Crores. Profit before interest,
depreciation and tax for the year was at X 3.95 Crores. Piramal Critical Care South Africa (Pty) Ltd. reported
a net profit of ¥ 2 Crores for the year.

Piramal Critical Care Pty Ltd
Net sales of Piramal Critical Care Pty Ltd (incorporated in Australia) for FY 2022 were at X 4.58 Crores.



Profit before interest, depreciation and tax for the year was at ¥ 0.56 Crores .Piramal Critical Care Pty Ltd
(Australia) reported a net profit of ¥ 0.52 Crores for the year.

Piramal Critical Care Deutschland GmbH

Net sales of Piramal Critical Care Deutschland GmbH for FY 2022 were at X 42.90 Crores. Loss before
interest, depreciation and tax for the year was at X 9.34 Crores. Piramal Critical Care Deutschland GmbH
reported a net loss of ¥ 10.97 Crores for the year.

Piramal Critical Care B.V.

Net sales of Piramal Critical Care B.V. for FY 2022 were at X 172.11 Crores. Loss before interest,
depreciation and tax for the year was at X 25.06 Crores. Piramal Critical Care B.V. reported a net loss of X
28.72 Crores for the year.

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Investment in Joint ventures and Associates are accounted for, using the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Company’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses and other comprehensive
income of joint ventures and associates. Dividends received or receivable from associates or joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

The Company owns 49% equity stake in Allergan India Private Limited. Share of profit of Allergan India
Private Limited considered in consolidation for FY 2022 amounted to X 59.07 crores.

The Company owns 27.78% of equity stake in Yapan Bio Private Limited and share of loss of Yapan Bio
Private Limited considered in consolidation for FY 2022 amounted to Z 0.04 crores.

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, no amount of principal or interest
was outstanding as on the balance sheet date.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark on the financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. The notes on financial statements referred to in the
Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

In accordance with Section 139(2) of the Act, M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP (‘Deloitte’), Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration Number 117366W/W-100018), were appointed by the shareholders of the
Company at an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on October 5, 2020, as (joint) Statutory Auditors for
a term of 5 years to hold office until the conclusion of the 5" AGM of the Company to be held in calendar
year 2025. Upon resignation of the first Statutory Auditor of the Company, Deloitte became the (sole)
Statutory Auditor of the Company.

Deloitte has furnished a certificate of their eligibility and consent under Sections 139(1) and 141 of the Act
and the Rules framed thereunder for their continuance as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2022-23.



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The annual report on Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) containing details of CSR Policy,
composition of CSR Committee, CSR projects undertaken, as required under Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is set out in Annexure C of this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo are given as Annexure D to this Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

a) Mr. Rajesh Laddha (DIN: 02228042) resigned as a Non-Executive Director with effect from
February 8, 2022. The Board places on record its appreciation and gratitude for the invaluable
contributions made by Mr. Laddha during his tenure;

b) The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’), on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (‘“NRC’) and subject to approval of the Members at the ensuing AGM,
appointed:

i.  Mr. Vivek Valsaraj (DIN: 06970246), Chief Financial Officer of the Company, Whole-Time
Director, liable to retire by rotation, in casual vacancy caused due to resignation of Mr.
Rajesh Laddha with effect from February 9, 2022;

ii.  Mr. Sridhar Gorthi (DIN: 00035824) and Mr. Peter Stevenson (DIN: 09544706) as
Additional Directors (Non-Executive, Independent) of the Company with effect from March
30, 2022;

iii.  After conclusion of the year under review, Ms. Nathalie Leitch (DIN: 09557042) as
Additional Director (Non-Executive) of the Company, with effect from May 24, 2022.

In line with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Peter DeYoung
(DIN: 07152550) will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has
offered himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment for the consideration of
the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received declarations from its Independent Directors, confirming that they meet the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and. In the opinion of the Board,
the Independent Directors appointed during the year under review, are persons with integrity and possess
requisite experience, expertise and proficiency required under applicable laws and the policies of the
Company.

BOARD EVALUATION
Evaluation of performance of all Directors is undertaken annually. The Company has implemented a

system of evaluating performance of the Board of Directors and of its Committees and the Non-Executive
Directors on the basis of a structured questionnaire which comprises evaluation criteria taking into



consideration various performance related aspects. The performance of the Executive Directors is
evaluated on the basis of achievement of their Key Result Areas.

The Board of Directors has expressed its satisfaction with the evaluation process.
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year under review, 10 (ten) Meetings of the Board of Directors were convened and held.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Company is covered under the Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy of Piramal Enterprises
Limited, holding company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee which was constituted on April 16, 2021, comprised of following members:

Name Category

Mr. Jairaj Purandare — Chairman Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. S. Ramadorai Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. Rajesh Laddha” Non - Executive

Mr. Vivek Valsaraj* Executive

*Mr. Rajesh Laddha resigned as a Director and member of the Committee w.e.f. February 8, 2022.

#Mr. Vivek Valsaraj was appointed as an Executive Director and member of the Committee w.e.f.
February 9, 2022.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Board of Directors has approved a Nomination Policy which lays down the framework for selection
and appointment of Directors and Senior Management and for determining qualifications, positive

attributes and independence of directors.

The Board has also approved a Policy relating to remuneration of Directors, members of Senior
Management and Key Managerial Personnel.

The Nomination Policy and the Remuneration Policy are enclosed as Annexure E to this Report.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Reference be made to Note nos. 5 and 12 of the financial statements for loans to bodies corporate and to
Note no. 38.3 for guarantees provided by the Company.

As regards details of Investments in bodies corporate, the same are given in Note no. 4 of the financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS



During the year, all contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company with related parties
were in ordinary course of business and on an arms length basis. There were no material related party
transactions by the Company during the year. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions
as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

Systems are in place for obtaining prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee on an annual basis for
transactions with related parties which are of a foreseeable and repetitive nature. The transactions to be
entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted and a statement giving details of all transactions
with related parties shall be placed before the Audit Committee for their review on a periodic basis.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

a. The remuneration paid by the Company to the Managerial Personnel during the year was as follows:

Sr. No. | Name of Managerial Personnel Remuneration for the
FY 2021-22 (inX)
1. Ms. Nandini Piramal 3,65,75,440
2. Mr. Peter DeYoung 4,92,59,404
3. Mr. Vivek Valsaraj* 2,15,84,427
4, Ms. Tanya Sanish 25,91,979
Notes:

* Mr. Vivek Valsaraj, Chief Financial Officer, was appointed as a Whole-Time Director with effect from
February 9, 2022. Accordingly, the remuneration drawn by Mr. Valsaraj was approved by the Board.

b. Employee Particulars
Details of employee remuneration as required under the provisions of Section 197 of the Act and Rule
5(2) & 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
provided as Annexure F.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, the Company has
appointed M/s. N L Bhatia & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of
the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as Annexure G and forms an integral part of this
Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The Enterprise Risk Management (‘ERM’) Policy formulated by Piramal Enterprises Limited (holding

company) covers within its ambit, the business of the Company. On the basis of the ERM Policy, a
framework has been put in place to identify, manage and mitigate business risks. Adequate internal



controls and assurance processes are embedded into all activities of the Company in line with the ERM
Policy.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and systems of compliance which are established
and maintained by the Company, audits conducted including audit of internal financial controls and
reviews by the Management, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls
were adequate and effective during FY 2021-22.

The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and ability, that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed with no material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit of the Company for the
year ended on that date;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual financial statements on a going concern basis; and

(e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

COST AUDIT

In terms of Section 148 of the Act, the Company is required to maintain cost records and have the audit
of its cost records conducted by a Cost Accountant. Cost records are prepared and maintained by the
Company as required under Section 148(1) of the Act. M/s. G. R. Kulkarni & Associates, Cost
Accountants have been duly appointed as Cost Auditors for conducting cost audit in respect of products
manufactured by the Company which are covered under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014 for the financial year ending March 31, 2023.

They were also the Cost Auditors for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. As required under Section
148 of the Act, necessary resolution has been included in the Notice convening the AGM, seeking
ratification by Members to the remuneration proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditors for the financial
year ending March 31, 2023.



DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual
working in Company’s premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always
endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including
sexual harassment.

The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace which is in
line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (‘ICC”) has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees)
are covered under this Policy. ICC has its presence at corporate offices as well as at site locations.

The Policy is gender neutral. During the period under review, two complaints were filed with ICC.

OTHERS
The Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there
were no transactions related to these items during the period under review:

1. Details relating to issue of sweat equity shares and shares with differential rights as to dividend,
voting or otherwise, since there was no such issue of shares.

2. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

3. During the period under review, none of the Auditors of the Company have reported any fraud as
specified under Section 143(12) of the Act.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We take this opportunity to thank the employees for their dedicated service and contribution to the
Company.

We also thank our banks, business associates, Members and other stakeholders for their continued support
to the Company.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors
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ANNEXURE A

CHANGES IN COMPANY’S SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND/OR ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES DURING FY 2022:

A. CHANGES IN SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME SUBSIDIARIES:

a) Hemmo Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
b) Piramal Pharma Japan GK

No entity has ceased to be a Subsidiary during FY 2022.
B. CHANGES IN JOINT VENTURES
COMPANY WHICH HAS BECOME JOINT VENTURE

No entity has become nor has ceased to be a Joint Venture Company during FY 2022.

C. CHANGES IN ASSOCIATE COMPANY

COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME ASSOCIATES:
a) Yapan Bio Private Limited

No entity has ceased to be an Associate Company during FY 2022.



FORM AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURES

Part "A": Subsidiaries

Annexure B

Name of the Subsidiary Company

Piramal Critical Care
Deutschland GmbH

Piramal Critical Care

Italia, S.P.A

Piramal Critical Care

Limited

Piramal Healthcare
(Canada) Limited

Piramal Healthcare (UK)
Limited

Piramal Healtchare Pension
Trustees
Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary

March 31, 2022*

December 31, 2021*

December 31, 2021*

December 31, 2021*

December 31, 2021*

December 31, 2021*

Reporting currency EUR EUR UsD CAD GBP GBP

Average rate 86.59 87.32 74.27 59.47 102.10 102.10
Closing rate 84.20 84.23 74.34 58.43 100.42 100.42
Share capital (Including Additional Paid In Capital) 82.70 21.06 88.50 189.23 233.30 1.00
Reserves & Surplus (73.48) 1.46 (7.81) 471.73 448.15 1.00
Total assets 24.33 67.22 1,157.42 726.98 1,288.02 -
Total liabilities 15.11 44.70 1,076.72 66.01 606.57 -
Investments - - 8.04 - - B
Turnover 42.90 83.45 266.02 280.40 741.57 -
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation (10.97) (3.19) (106.78) 83.80 43.44 -
Provision for taxation - (income)/expense - - (2.62) (4.22) 4.88 -
Profit/ (Loss) after taxation (10.97) (3.19) (104.16) 88.02 38.56 -
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - -
Proposed dividend - - - - - B
% of shareholding 100 100 100 100 100 100




Name of the Subsidiary Company

Piramal Critical Care South|
Africa (Pty) Ltd

Piramal
Dutch
Holdings N.V.

Piramal Healthcare Inc.

Piramal Critical Care, Inc.

Piramal Pharma Inc.

Piramal Pharma Solutions
Inc.

PEL Pharma Inc.

Reporting period for the subsidiary

December 31, 2021%*

December 31, 2021*

December 31, 2021%*

December 31, 2021*

December 31, 2021%*

December 31, 2021*

December 31, 2021*

Reporting currency

ZAR

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

Average rate 5.05 74.27 74.27 74.27 74.27 74.27 74.27
Closing rate 4.68 74.34 74.34 74.34 74.34 74.34 74.34
Share capital (Including Additional Paid In Capital 4.56 1,685.03 2,021.31 128.89 62.16 106.56 74.71
Reserves & Surplus 2.21 281.06 (694.55) 718.54 (48.53) (542.69) (124.11)
Total assets 26.84 3,191.93 1,331.27 2,435.07 61.59 398.62 755.54
Total liabilities 20.06 1,225.84 4.51 1,587.64 47.96 834.74 804.94
Investments - 2,739.22 184.57 - - - 531.57
Turnover 34.30 - 19.28 1,347.79 - 183.59 10.16
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 2.02 (61.06) 130.76 185.97 (0.34) (76.63) (22.78)
Provision for taxation - (income)/expens¢ 0.58 - 1.62 45.62 0.02 0.11 0.02
Profit/ (Loss) after taxation 1.44 (61.06) 129.15 140.35 (0.36) (76.74) (22.79)
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - - -
Proposed dividend - - - - - - -

% of shareholding 100 100 100 100 100 100 100




Name of the Subsidiary Company

Ash Stevens LLC

Piramal Critical Care B.V.

Piramal Critical Care Pty
Limited (Australia)

PEL Healthcare LLC

Piramal Pharma Solutions
(Dutch) B.V.

Convergence Chimicals
Private Limited

Hemmo

Pharmaceuticals
Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary December 31, 2021* December 31, 2021* December 31, 2021* March 31, 2022* December 31, 2021* March 31,2022* March 31,2022*
Reporting currency UsD EUR AUD UsD EUR INR INR

Average rate 74.27 87.32 55.29 74.24 87.32 1.00 1.00
Closing rate 74.34 84.23 54.03 73.12 84.23 1.00 1.00
Share capital (Including Additional Paid In Capital) 332.98 8.42 2.70 131.58 - 70.01 0.29
Reserves & Surplus 222.31 (31.92) 0.21 (46.30) 2.15 50.19 134.24
Total assets 647.37 187.04 3.62 250.63 50.26 205.04 184.31
Total liabilities 92.08 210.53 0.71 165.35 48.10 84.83 49.78
Investments - - - - - -

Turnover 339.18 182.25 2.14 139.81 47.08 123.84 146.27
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 59.22 (22.13) 0.18 (45.56) 3.08 24.67 (8.59)
Provision for taxation - (income)/expense - - 0.05 - - 5.99 12.96
Profit/ (Loss) after taxation 59.22 (22.13) 0.13 (45.56) 3.08 18.68 (21.55)
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - -

Proposed dividend - - - - - -

% of shareholdi 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

* For the purposes of the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report, the accounts of the Company have been rolled forward to March 31, 2022. The details provided herein, however, are based on the statutory financial year.

1. Name of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations-
Piramal Pharma Japan GK (w.e.f November 21, 2021)

2. Following are new subsidiaries during the year-
Hemmo Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (w.e.f June 22, 2021)
Piramal Pharma Japan GK (w.e.f November 21, 2021)




Part "B'"': Associates

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of the Associates Allergan India Private
Limited
Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2022

Shares of Associates / Joint Ventures held by the Company on the year end

- Number 39,20,000

- Amount of Investment in Associate / Joint Venture 3.92

- Extent of Holding % 49%
Description of how there is significant influence Based on shareholding
Reason why the associate / joint venture is not consolidated Not Applicable since Equity

accounting has been adopted

Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 137.16

Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation 59.07

ii. Not considered in Consolidation Not Applicable

1. Name of the associates / joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold or ceased to be associate/ joint venture during the year - NA

ll \ Iil\ ||' Ii;'
Place: Mumbai %) | AN /A
. \) \ N -\

Date: May 24, 2022 Director

s
W g

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Annual Report on CSR Activities

ANNEXURE C

The CSR initiatives of the Company are either undertaken as projects or programs or activities, whether new or ongoing and in line with the CSR Policy. During the year ended
March 31, 2022, the Company discharged its CSR obligations through projects and programs of Piramal Foundation (referred to as “CSR entity”) in the education sector.

The CSR entity develops innovative solutions to resolve issues that are critical roadblocks towards improving India’s education issues. The CSR entity believes that considerable
positive change can occur, when we collaborate with likeminded partners and nurture projects that are scalable ensuring a long term impact.

The CSR policy of the Company is guided by the core values of the Group, namely, Knowledge, Action, Care and Impact.

2. Composition of CSR Committee*:

Sr. Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of meetings of CSR Number of meetings of CSR
No. Directorship Committee held during the year® Committee attended during the year®
1 Mr. Jairaj Purandare, Chairman Non-Executive, Independent 2 2
2 Ms. Nandini Piramal Whole-Time Director 2 2
3 Mr. Rajesh Laddha** Executive 2 1
4 Mr. Vivek Valsaraj” Whole-Time Director 2 1

* The CSR Committee was constituted on 16™ April, 2021.
**¥Mr. Rajesh Laddha resigned as a member of the Committee w.e.f. close of business hours on 8" February, 2022.
AMr. Vivek Valsaraj was appointed as a member of the Committee w.e.f. 9" February, 2022.

$ Meetings held and attended during the tenure of the respective director as a member of the Committee.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:
Not Applicable

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):

Impact assessment report was not applicable in FY 2021-22 for the CSR projects undertaken by the Company.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any:



SI. No | Financial Year | Amount available for set-off Amount required to be setoff
from preceding financial years (Rs. in Crores) | for the financial year, if any (Rs. In Crores)
1 FY 18-19 NA NA
2 FY 19-20 NA NA
3 FY 20-21 NA NA
TOTAL NA NA

6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 301.12 Crores

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - Rs. 6.02 Crores
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years - Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any — Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢) — Rs. 6.02 Crores

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account as per Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year. Section 135(6). Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5).
(Rs. In Crores) | Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

6.30 NIL NA NA Nil NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

@O 1@ (©)] “ ®) (6) ) ®) (€] (10) an
SI. | Name of the | Item from | Local | Location of the | Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of | Mode of implementation —
No. | Project the list of | area | project. duration. allocated spent in | transferred | implementation | Through implementing
activities (Yes/ for the the to - Direct | agency
in No). | State. | District. project (Rs. | current unspent (Yes/No) Name CSR
Schedule In Crores). | financial CSR registration
VII to the Year account for number
Act. (Rs. In | the project
Crores) | (Rs. In
Crores)
Districts of
Aspirational Promoting Jharkhand, Piramal
1 District Education No Chhattisgarh, 4 years 28.55 6.30 Nil No Foundation CSR00006603
Collaborative Uttarakhand,
Odisha, Andhra




Pradesh,
Karnataka,
Kerela, Tamil
Nadu and
Telangana
Total 28.55 6.30 Nil
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
€)) 2) (€) 4 (©) Q) @) ®
SI. Name of the Project Item from the | Local Location of the project Amount spent Mode of Mode of implementation —
No. list of activities | area for the project | implementation — | Through implementing agency
in schedule VII | (Yes/ State District (Rs. In Direct (Yes/No) Name CSR registration
to the Act No) Crores) number
Not applicable

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads — NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — NIL

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 6.30 Crores
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:

SI. No | Particular Amount (Rs. In Crores)
1. | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 6.02
2. | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 6.30
3. | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL
4. | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any NIL
5. | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] -0.28

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

SIL. Preceding Amount transferred to Unspent | Amount spent in the | Amount transferred to any fund specified | Amount remaining to be
No. | Financial CSR Account under section 135 | reporting Financial | under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if | spent in succeeding financial
Year (6) (Rs. In Crores) Year (Rs. In Crores) any. years. (Rs. In Crores)
Name of | Amount (Rs. In | Date
the Fund Crores) transfer.
Not applicable
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): N.A.
TONRE®) [3) [ (4) [ (5) [ (6) L () [ (8) [ 9)




SI. No. | Project ID. Name of the | Financial Year | Project Total amount | Amount spent on | Cumulative amount | Status of the
Project. in which the | duration allocated for the | the projectin the | spent at the end of | project — Comp-
project was project (Rs. In | reporting reporting Financial | leted /Ongoing
commenced Crores) Financial (Rs. In | Year. (Rs. In
Crores) Crores)
Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise
details):
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) - NA
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset — NIL
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. - NA

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset) - NA

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5) — N.A.

—
-~

\} ) -JF / i JL.
Vivek Valsaraj Jairaj Purandare
(Whole - time Director) (Chairman - CSR Committee)



ANNEXURE D

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

i. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy
During the period, the Company introduced the following measures at its plant locations to
conserve energy:

Pithampur

a.

P oo o

Utilities at the site were upgraded by replacing conventional Vapour Absorption Chiller with
Energy Efficient Centrifugal Chiller;

The Steam Pressure Reducing Station was replaced to get high flow with energy savings;
Conventional Lighting Fixtures were replaced with LED lights;

Old Bag Filter of 4 Ton Boiler was replaced with Energy Efficient Bag Filter Unit;
Installation of Variable Frequency Drives in High capacity motors and motion sensors for
lighting control resulted in Power Saving.

Digwal

a.

Energy Efficient Water Chiller & Brine Chiller were installed to reduce the specific power
consumption. The said installation resulted in potential annualized savings about 18.5 lakh
units and actual savings from October 2021 to March 2022 was 6.06 lakh units;

Low efficient Gas (R-22) was introduced for Air conditioners with Energy efficient along
with 40 Ozone friendly refrigerant for Air Conditioners, which resulted in saving about 1.86
lakh power units for the FY 2022;

A 20 HP pump for chilled water circulation was replaced with 30 HP pump, which was
running with valve throttle. The said replacement resulted in saving of approx. 0.52 lakh
power units;

Separate Brine compressors were running for 2p production blocks, rationalization of
compressor piping network resulted in the power savings of about 1.32 lakh units in FY 2022.
Variable frequency drive (‘VFD”) for Unit-1 Process & utility cooling tower pumps were
installed, which were operating with throttled discharge and resulted power savings of about
1.21 lakh power units in the FY 2022;

Boiler induced draught (ID) fan was frequency optimized through VFD based on flue gas
draft, which resulted in savings of approx. 2.03 lakh power units in FY 2022.

Servo stabilizer was installed for lighting to provide optimum voltage and reduce heat losses.,
which resulted on saving approx. 18,800 power units in FY 2022.

Ahmedabad PPDS

Sr. . .. .
No Project Description Capital Investment
1 Boiler Modification: % 8,50,000
a. Provision of FO overflow tank was made to avoid environmental




incidences due to FO line overflow and reuse of FO

b. Provision for monitoring of FO temperature in day tank was
made;

¢. Provision of FO and steam flow meter to track the consumption
of utility was done;

d. Re-routing of boiler lines for proper maintenance was carried out.

Installed energy efficient pressure independent balancing and
control valve in 7 Air Handling units of pilot plant for cooling and % 28,00,000
heating application. These valves enabled in providing the right flow
at the right time that optimizes chiller and boiler efficiency.

Ahmedabad PDS

a. The Site had merged chiller lines between Wing-A and Wing-B in order to utilize single
chiller to manage both sides load;

b. As per the design of chiller at site, the site needs to run Wing A and Wing B’s chiller to
support utility load. Post merging of chiller lines, the site reduced consumption of chiller in
Wing A, which resulted in savings approx. X 6 lakhs (calculated basis self-consumption load
of chiller). The site had also saved on cost by converting chiller’s CMC to AMC for Carrier
Chiller thereby saving approx. Z 3 lakhs, payback is approx. 1 year;

c. The site was operating in two shifts and in order to ensure that the labs were safe, exhaust
was continuously used for removing chemical vapor generated through chemicals. For the
major operations at site in the laboratories, exhaust was primary necessity.

d. In the wing A, till last year the site was operating exhaust blower in night shift at 35Hz
frequency.

e. To save the power in night shift, the site had installed the VFD atomization. The said
automation, 7.00 am to 11.00 pm, the blowers work at 35Hz and during night at 20Hz.

Rabale
a. Research & Development facility has been created in the MIDC area at Rabale. During the
project execution, green building principles were given due importance.

b. The internal energy audit was conducted R&D Centre and areas for improvement were
identified.

ii. Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

The Company would continuously explore avenues for using alternate sources of energy keeping
in mind several parameters including environment, production and cost efficiencies.

The following steps were taken the below mentioned sites of the Company:

Pithampur:
a. Usage of Rejected / Condensate water for Boiler operation and gardening;
b. Continued use of Agro-Briquette, a clean energy source as Fuel for Boiler and Hydro-
electric power in addition to conventional power.

Ennore:
a. The site purchased 7% renewable energy through open Access (IEX).




b. The site saved X 22.00 lakh by usage of imported coal with high calorific value & low
cost, instead of Government allotted Singareni coal.

The Company’s Plants have collectively made capital investments in energy conservation
equipment aggregating to % 10.09 crores for the FY 2022

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i. Action taken:

Pithampur

a. Renovation of Quality Control Lab into a state of the art facility;

b. Commissioning of Automatic Tablet Inspection machine;

c. Replacement of convention gas suppression system with Novac 1230 gas suppression
system in the Document Room, Control Sample room and Quality Check lab;
Diesel Generator 1010 KVA with auto synchronization facility was installed at the site;

. Automated camera based Inspection Machine for Tablet and Capsule;
f.  High speed carton packing machine in Ophthalmic Eye Drops.

Ennore
a. Replacement of conventional paints with anti-corrosive paints to improve stability of
structures at site.
b. Establish ROCHEM disc type RO to recover 50% permeate from previous RO rejects.

Digwal

a. Powder Transfer System — Installed in the production blocks to reduce the safety risk and
contamination at site.

b. Layer Separation System - PLC based automated phase monitoring and layer separation
system installed to avoid manual errors during layer separation operation at site.

c. Auto Fire Suppression System - As part of Business continuity plan, auto fire suppression
system with NOVAC gas installed at 5 power panels at the site. This will enable
extinguishment of fire immediately within the compartment.

Ahmedabad PDS

The site had replaced 12 year old cooling tower with new design concept i.e. VFD atomization
and temperature cut-off.

Rabale
a. Internal Energy and utility audit was conducted to identify the area of improvement.
Couple of project have been identified and Budgetary approval has been taken from the
senior management

ii. Benefits derived:

Pithampur
a. Coordination with customer helped reduce defects reduced by 1% in Esperion’ s products.



Ennore
a. Life span of painting increased to 3years.
b. Reduced 50% RO-II reject effluent load to MEE operation by implementation of RO-III.

Digwal

a. Amino alcohol — n-Butanol recovery.

b. Abacavir sulphate — IMS recovery and IPA recovery.
c. P3B - P2yield improvement and THF recovery in P2.

PDS Ahmedabad
Cost was reduced and chiller efficiency was increased.

PPDS Ahmedabad

Most new chemical entities (NCES) possessed poor water solubility which led to bioavailability
issues during initial preclinical screening. This resulted in rejection of an NCE with potentially
promising therapeutic activity. Selection of right formulation approach and technology for such
drug candidates aid in improving its solubility, bioavailability and enable NCE development.
Following technologies have been absorbed to enhance solubility and hence, bioavailability of
NCE with poor aqueous solubility.

a. Hot Melt Extrusion (HME) Make — Thermo Scientific Model — Pharma 11.:
HME is a solvent free process to form amorphous solid dispersions (with polymer) of poorly
soluble crystalline drug substances, enhancing their solubility and bioavailability.

b. Dyno Mill / Bead Mill (Nano Mill) - Make- WAB group, Model — Research Lab:
Nano milling is process to reduce API particles at hano size down up to 100 nm. This organic
solvent free process and involve wet milling reducing particle size enhancing dissolution rate
and bioavailability of drugs with poor aqueous solubility. The nano milled drugs can be
formulated in to dosage forms such as tablets, capsules etc. with enhanced dissolution
properties.

c. Zetasizer - Make: Malvern Model: Pro Blue
This instrument is used to charactecterize the nano size particles of drug substances. It is
used to precisely measure the size and charge (zeta potential) of particles in dispersed systems
ranging from nanometers (3.8 nm) to micrometers (100 pum), using Dynamic Light Scattering
(DLS) principle.

d. Weight Sorter High Speed, Make CI precision, Model - SP B40
High speed tablet or capsule weight sorter substantially increased the output from 2500
units/hour to 7000 units/hour. This addition has significantly enhanced the process efficiency.

Expenditure on R&D
During the year, the Company incurred an expenditure of ¥ 61.94 crores on Research and
Development.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
During the year, foreign exchange earnings was X 1,844.91 crores as against outgo of X 482.94 crores.



ANNEXURE E

NOMINATION POLICY

Preamble

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) of Piramal Pharma Limited (the ‘Company’),
has adopted the following policy and procedures with regard to identification and nomination of
persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management.

This policy is framed in compliance with Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

1.
A

1.

Criteria for identifying persons for appointment as Directors and Senior Management:

Directors

Candidates for Directorship should possess appropriate qualifications, skills and expertise in
one or more fields of finance, law, general corporate management, science and innovation,
public policy, sales & marketing and other disciplines as may be identified by the NRC and/or
the Board from time to time, that may be relevant to the Company’s business.

Such candidates should also have a record of professional success.

Every candidate for Directorship on the Board should have the following positive attributes:

a)
b)

c)

d)

f)

9)

Possesses a high level of integrity, ethics, credibility and trustworthiness;
Ability to handle conflict constructively and possess the willingness to address critical
issues proactively;

Is familiar with the business of the Company and the industry in which it operates and
displays a keen interest in contributing at the Board level to the Company’s growth in
these areas;

Possesses the ability to bring independent judgment to bear on the Board’s
deliberations especially on issues of strategy, performance, risk management and
resource planning;

Displays willingness to devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs;

Values Corporate Governance and possesses the skills and ability to assist the
Company in implementing good corporate governance practices;

Possesses leadership skills and is a team player.

Criteria for Independence applicable for selection of Independent Directors:

a)

b)

Candidates for Independent Directors on the Board of the Company should comply
with the criteria for Independence as stipulated in the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended or re-enacted or notified from time to time.

Such Candidates shall submit a Declaration of Independence to the NRC / Board,
initially and thereafter, annually, based upon which, the NRC / Board shall evaluate
compliance with this criteria for Independence.



=

Change in status of Independence

Every Independent Director shall be required to inform the NRC / Board immediately in case
of any change in circumstances that may put his or her independence in doubt, based upon
which, the NRC / Board may take such steps as it may deem fit in the best interest of the
organization.

Extension of existing term of Independent Directors

Upon the expiry of the prevailing term and subject to the eligibility of the Independent
Director (‘ID’), under the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules framed thereunder and other
applicable law(s), as prevailing from time to time, the Board may, on the recommendations of
the NRC and subject to the outcome of performance evaluation and in compliance with
applicable statutory requirements, at its discretion, recommend to the shareholders an
extension or renewal of the ID’s existing term for such period as it may deem fit and proper,
in the best interest of the organization.

Members of Senior Management

For the purpose of this Policy, the term ‘Senior Management” means all executives of the
Company who are heading any business or function of the Company.

The eligibility criteria for appointments to Senior Management and continuity thereof shall
include integrity and ethics, in addition to possessing qualifications, expertise, experience and
special competencies relevant to the position for which purpose the executive is being or has
been appointed.

Any candidate being considered for the post of senior management should be willing to
comply fully with the Code of Conduct applicable to employees of the Company and other
applicable policies, in force from time to time.

Process for identification & shortlisting of candidates

Directors

The NRC shall identify the need for appointment of new Directors on the Board on the basis
of the evaluation process for Board as a whole and of individual Directors or as it may
otherwise determine.

Candidates for Board membership may be identified from a number of sources, including but
not limited to past and present members of the Board and Directors database.

NRC shall evaluate proposals for appointment of new Directors on the basis of qualification
criteria and positive attributes referred to hereinabove and make its recommendations to the
Board.

Members of Senior Management

The NRC shall consider the recommendations of the management while evaluating the
selection of executives in senior management. The NRC may also identity potential candidates
for appointment to Senior Management through referrals and recommendations from past and
present members of the Board or from such other sources as it may deem fit and proper.



The NRC shall evaluate proposals for appointments to Senior Management on the basis of
eligibility criteria referred to hereinabove and such other criteria as it may deem appropriate.

Based on such evaluation, the NRC shall shortlist the desired candidate and make its
recommendations to the Board for appointment.

Removal

Directors

If a Director incurs any disqualification mentioned under the Companies Act, 2013 or any
other applicable law, the NRC may recommend to the Board, the removal of the said Director
subject to and in compliance with the statutory provisions.

Such recommendations may also be made on the basis of performance evaluation of the
Directors or as may otherwise be thought fit by the NRC.

Members of Senior Management
The NRC shall consider the recommendations of the management while making
recommendations to the Board for dismissal / removal of those in Senior Management.

Such recommendations may also be made on the basis of performance evaluation of members
of Senior Management to the extent applicable or as may otherwise be thought fit by the NRC.

Review
The NRC shall periodically review the effectiveness of this Policy and recommend any
revisions that maybe required to this Policy to the Board for consideration and approval.

REMUNERATION POLICY

1.2.

1.3

2.1.

Preamble

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) of Piramal Pharma Limited (the
‘Company’), has adopted the following policy and procedures with regard to remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

The Remuneration Policy (‘Policy’) is framed in compliance with applicable provisions of
Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

This Policy reflects the core values viz. Knowledge, Action, Care and Impact.
Designing of Remuneration Packages

While designing remuneration packages, the following factors are taken into consideration:

a. Ability to attract, motivate and retain the best talent in the industries in which the
Company operates;

b. Current industry benchmarks;

c. Cost of living;



A.

4.

d. Maintenance of an appropriate balance between fixed, performance linked variable pay
and long term incentives reflecting long and short term performance objectives aligned to
the working of the Company and its goals;

e. Achievement of Key Result Areas (KRASs) of the employee, the concerned department /
function and of the Company.

Remuneration to Directors

Non- Executive/ Independent Directors:

The Non- Executive / Independent directors are entitled to the following:

Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive / Independent Directors receive remuneration in the form of
sitting fees for attending meetings of Board or Committees thereof. Provided that the amount
of such fees shall not exceed such amount per meeting as may be prescribed by the Central

Government from time to time.

Commission: Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders
subject to compliance with applicable statutory requirements.

Remuneration to Whole — Time Directors
The remuneration to be paid to the Whole — Time Directors shall be in compliance with the

applicable statutory requirements, including such requisite approvals as required by law.

Increments may be recommended by the NRC to the Board which shall be within applicable
statutory limits.

The Board may at the recommendation of the NRC and its discretion, may consider the
payment of such additional remuneration within the framework of applicable laws.

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and other Senior Management shall be as per the HR
Policy of the Company in force from time to time and in compliance with applicable requirements of
law. Total remuneration comprises of:

A fixed Basic Salary;

Perquisites as per Company Policy;

Retirement benefits as per Company Rules and statutory requirements;

Performance linked incentive (on an annual basis) based on the achievement of pre-set KRAs
and long term incentives based on value creation.

In addition to the above mentioned remuneration package, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management may also be provided Employee Stock Options (ESOPS) by the parent company, in
compliance with applicable regulatory requirements.

5.

Remuneration to Other Employees

The remuneration packages of other employees are also formulated in accordance with HR Policy of
the Company in force from time to time. In addition to basic salary and other components forming



part of overall salary package, employees are also provided with perquisites and retirement benefits
as per the HR Policy of the Company and statutory requirements, where applicable.

6. Disclosure
As per applicable regulatory requirements, the Remuneration Policy or its salient features shall be
disclosed in the Board’s Report.

7. Review
The NRC shall periodically review the effectiveness of this Policy and recommend any revisions that
may be required to this Policy to the Board for consideration and approval.



Annexure F

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES,

2014
Total Date of Remuneration
Sr. No. Designation Age Age Education Exp. Joining paid Last Employment & Position Held
1|Ninad Navalkar Vice President - Finance 55 Yrs |Chartered Accountant India (CA India) 30 yrs 06/10/2020 1,02,97,680 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
2|Vivek Valsaraj President and Chief Financial Officer 49 Yrs [ICWA, B.Com 27 Yrs 06/10/2020 2,30,40,850 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
3|Jatin Unadkat Vice President - Alternate Channels 42 Yrs |Bcom, CA 23 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,29,18,499 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
4|Debashish Chakravorty Executive Vice President, India and UK Formulations 55 Yrs |MBA (Finance), B Pharm 32 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,53,83,826 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
5|Jatin Lal President - M & A 49 Yrs |PG Diploma in Management 25 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,72,94,982 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
6|Pramod Gite Vice President - Human Resources 50 Yrs |BSC and MBA in HR 8.7 Yrs 06/10/2020 69,75,212 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
7|Rajendra Mali Vice President - Manufacturing PCC 49 Yrs |BE (Chemical engineering) 26 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,09,01,701 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
8|Nandini Piramal* Executive Director 42 Yrs [MBA 19 yrs 01-04-2021 3,84,82,109 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
9| Akash Bhatt Vice President - Supply Chain 48 Yrs |B Tech (Mechanical engineering) 24 Yrs 06/10/2020 48,02,838 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
10{Surinder Gulati Exeecutive Vice President - Manufacturing (PPS - INDIA API) 50 Yrs |BE 28 Yrs 06/10/2020 2,36,06,504 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
11|Peter DeYoung* Chief Executive Officer - Piramal Global Pharma 44 Yrs |B.Sc, MBA 16 Yrs 06/10/2020 5,26,98,639 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
12[Sandeep Oak Senior Vice President - Supply Chain 55 Yrs |BSC (Chemistry) 32 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,17,34,192 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
13|Narendrra Arora Senior Vice President - Shared Services 51 Yrs |B.Com, ICWA 27 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,52,36,835 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
14[Sameer Penkar Vice President - Marketing 49 Yrs [MMS (Marketing), BE 22 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,17,22,441 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
15|Satish Patil Chief Manager 46 Yrs |PG in Bio-Chemistry, PG diploma in informatics 15 Yrs 06/10/2020 34,18,698 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
16| Vikram Duggal Senior Vice President - Human Resources 48 Yrs |BSc, PGDPM-HR, XLRI 25 Yrs 01/08/2020 1,97,32,637 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
17|Ritesh Desai General Manager - M&A 42 Yrs |Mcom, CA 20 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,12,70,595 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
18|Pankaj Agarwal General Manager - R&D & Packaging 53 Yrs |B Pharm 29 Yrs 06/10/2020 53,52,178 |Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
19|Nitish Bajaj CEO - Consumer Products Division 49 Yrs |PGDM in Marketing & Finance 25 Yrs 06/10/2020 2,45,57,179 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
20|Prashanth M S Vice President - Sales 49 Yrs [Masters in Management Studies - Marketing 24 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,79,75,566 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
21|Harish Verma Vice President - EHS 56 Yrs |BE (Chemical engineering) - Panjab University 29 Yrs 06/10/2020 1,17,17,345 | Tranferred from Piramal Enterprises Ltd
22|Vinay Agarwal Senior Vice President - Operations 58 Yrs |BE (Chemical engineering) 19 yrs 04/05/2020 1,49,10,427 |Glenmark Pharmaceuticals, Senior Vice President
23|Raolji Gajendrasinh Balvantsinh™ Director and Site Head - PDS Ahmedabad 49 Yrs [Post doctorate and PHD (Chemistry) 20 Yrs 03/03/2022 11,19,505 | Aragen Life Sciences, Senior Director

*Ms. Nandini Piramal is Mr. Peter DeYoung's spouse

~ Employed for part of the financial year (joined during the year )
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To,
The Members,
Piramal Pharma Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1) Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

(2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

(3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

(4) Where ever required we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other Applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standard is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

Date: 24/05/2022 For N. L. Bhatia & Associates

Place: Mumbai Practising Company Secretaries
UIN: P1996MH055800
UDIN: F005436D000379744

Wi BT

Bharat Upadhyay
Partner

FCS: 5436

CP. No. 4457

P/R No. 700/2020

pagelofl

' ' ' ' Premier Road
Address : 507, Skyline Wealth Space, 5th Floor, G2 Wing, Skyline Qasm Complex, ,
Near Vidyavihar Station, Ghatkopar (W), Mumbai - 400 086.
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FORM NO. MR-}
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31" 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
PIRAMAL PHARMA LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Piramal Pharma Limited (hereinafter called the
‘Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on March 31, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minutes’ book, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the
provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made thereunder, including amendments
from time to time;

2. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent applicable;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and amendments thereof and the Regulations and bye-laws framed
thereunder;

4. Other specifically applicable Laws as per list attached as ‘Annexure A’ to this report.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and the guidelines issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs for conducting the Board/ Committee and Shareholders’ meetings through video
Conference (VC) or Other Audio Visual means (OAVM).

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
- Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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Continuation Sheet

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and [ndependent Directors.Thechanges in
the composition of the Board during the year were in compliance with the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made there under:

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advancefor meetings other than those held at shorter
notice and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions taken in the Board Meetings were passed unanimously; and with requisite
majority in General Meetings.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the period under review;

® The Board of Directors in their meeting had approved the revision of limits for provision of
financial assistance of any nature, including by the way of corporate guarantees, up to an
amount not exceeding USD 50 million or its equivalent, in multiple tranches, to or for the
benefit of wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

¢ The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the issue and allotment of up to
2,000 Rated, Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures having a
nominal value of Rs. 10,00,000 each aggregating up to Rs. 200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two
Hundred Crores only) (‘Debentures’), redeemable at par, on a private placement basis.

e The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the Issuance of 17,76,65,757 Equity
Shares of face value Rs. 10/-, to the existing shareholders of the Company by way of
Bonus Issue.

e The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the issuance and allotment of
39,88,262 equity shares upon conversion of 75,00,000 Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares.

e The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the issuance and allotment of
96,57,423 equity shares for consideration other than cash, of Rs. 592,00,00,000 against
outstanding payable;

e The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the composite scheme of arrangement,
i.e. restructuring of the pharmaceutical and financial services business, between the
Company, Piramal Enterprises Limited, Convergence Chemicals Private Limited, Hemmo
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited, PHL Fininvest Private Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors.

e The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the investments of up to Rs. 130 crores
for 33.33% equity stake, in one or more tranches, through a combination of fresh issuance of
equity shares by Yapan Bio Private Limited and purchase of equity stake from the existing
promoters of Yapan Bio Private Limited.

We further report that, during the period under review the members of the Company in the
Annual General Meeting held on June21, 2021 accorded its approvalfor:

< Appointment of Mr. Peter DeYoung and Ms. Nandini Piramal as Whole-Time Directors

/ Page 2 of 5
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Continuation Sheet
e Appointment of Mr. Rajesh Laddha as a Non-Executive Director of the Company

¢ Appointment of Mr. S. Ramadorai as an Independent Director of the Company

e Appointment of Mr. JairajPurandare as an Independent Director of the Company

s Amendment to the Articles of Association of the Company.
Ratification of remuneration payable to Cost Auditors

e Issue of secured/ unsecured non-convertible  debentures (‘Debentures’), in one or more
series/ tranches, on private placement basis,

We further report that, during the period under reviewthe members of the Company in the
extraordinary general meetings held on October 1, 2021 accorded its approval:

* To create, offer, issue and allot by way of preferential issue, 96,57,423 (Ninety Six Lakhs
Fifty Seven Thousand Four Hundred Twenty Three) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10
(Rupees Ten) each of the Company to Piramal Enterprises Limited (‘PEL’), shareholder of
the Company, at a price of Rs. 613 per Equity Share (including a premium of Rs. 603 per
Equity Share) aggregating to Rs. 592,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Hundred Ninety Two
Crores) for consideration other than cash i.e. in lieu of Rs. 592,00,00,000 (Rupees Five
Hundred Ninety Two Crores) subsisting as payable by the Company to PEL.

¢ Issuance of 17,76,65,757 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/-, to the existing shareholders
of the Company by way of Bonus Issue.

Date: 24/05/2022 For N. L. Bhatia & Associates
Place: Mumbai Practising Company Secretaries
UIN: P1996MH055800
UDIN: F005436D000379744

A anrn— H. -

Bharat Upadhyay
Partner

FCS: 5436

CP. No. 4457

P/R No. 700/2020
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‘ANNEXURE A’

LIST OF OTHER SPECIFIC APPLICABLE LAWS {Including statutory amendments made thereto
or amendments thereof for the time being In force):

1. Foods Standard & Safety Act (FSSA), 2006, Food Safety and Standards Rules, 2011, Food Safety
and Standards (Licensing and Registration of Food Businesses), Regulations, 2011

2. The Legal Metrology Act & Legal Metrology (Packaged Commodities) Rules, 2011

3. Gujarat Special Economic Zone Act, 2004

4. Maharashtra Prohibition Act, 1949 (Bombay Act No. XXV of 1949)

5. Tamil Nadu Spirituous Preparations (Control) Rules, 1984

6. National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS), 2009

7. Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008

8. Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemical Rules, 1989

9. Bio-Medical Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1998

10. The Chemical Weapons Convention Act, 2000

11. Ozone Depleting Substance (R&C) Rules, 2000

12. Maharashtra Non-Biodegradable Wastes Act, 2006

13. Pharmaceutical Policy 2002

14. Good Clinical Practice Guidelines

15. NABL Accreditation India Requirements

16. Information Technology Act, 2000

17. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution)

Rules, 1982.
18. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Water (Prevention and Control of
Pollution) Rules 1975.

19. Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016

20. The Indian Copyright Act, 1957

21. The Patents Act, 1970

22. The Trade Marks Act, 1999

23. The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 and Rules thereto

24. The Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985;

25. The Drugs (Prices Control) Order, 2013

26. Drugs and Magic Remedies (Objectionable Advertisements) Act, 1954

27. Maharashtra Shops and Establishments (Regulation of employment and conditions of service) Act,

2017, Rules thereunder and other State Acts and Rules thereunder, including statutory
amendments made thereto.
28. Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and Contract Labour (Regulation and
Abolition) Central Rules, 1971 and applicable State Rules.

29. Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 and Industrial Employment (Standing Orders)
Central Rules, 1946 and applicable State Rules.

30. Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948 and Employees’ State Insurance (Central) Rules, 1950 and
Employees’ State Insurance (General) Regulations, 1950.

31. Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employees’ Provident
Fund Scheme, 1952 and Employees’ Pension Scheme, 1995 and Employees’ Deposit Linked
Insurance Scheme, 1976.

. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 & Equal Remuneration Rules, 1976

. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and applicable State Rules.
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34.
35,

36.
37.
38.

39,
40.

41.

42,

43.

Continuation

Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and Payment of Bonus Rules, 1975

Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and Payment of Wages (Nomination) Rules, 2009 and applicable
State Rules.

Minimum Wages Act, 1948 and Minimum Wages Rules, 1950 and applicable State Rules.
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and applicable State Rules.

Bombay Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1953 Rules thereunder and other State Acts and Rules
thereunder.

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
Information Technology Act, 2000 and Information Technology (Reasonable security practices
and procedures and sensitive personal data or information) Rules, 2011.

Income Tax Act, 1961, Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, Central Excise Act, 1944 and
rules thereunder; State Acts governing Profession Tax, Tax on Trades, Callings and Employments
Act and rules thereunder.

Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and E-Waste (Management) Rules, 2016, Batteries
(Management & Handling) Rules, 2001.

Any other Central and State Acts and Rules made thereunder, as may be applicable

N L Bhatia & Associates

Sheet
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Elphinstone Road (West)
Mumbai-400 013
Maharashtra, India

[ Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B ool 22 Rl AN

To The Members of Piramal Pharma Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Piramal Pharma
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

» The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

« Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Regd, Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 32nd Fioor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-4 00 013, Maharashira, India

{LLP Identification No. AAB-B737)
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« In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income , cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
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fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind

AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31

March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure A", Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. As stated in note 15 to the standalone financial statements:

(a) The Company did not propose any final dividend in the previous year.

(b) The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year
and until the date of this report is in compliance with Section 123 of the
Act.

(c) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for
the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance
with section 123 of the Act, as applicable

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

“1\-—-*

Rupen K. Bhatt

(Partner)

(Membership No. 046930)
(UDIN:22046930AINIMH5506)

Place: Mumbai
Date:24 May 2022
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Piramal Pharma
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective
company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’'s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

}x. vtz )

Rupen K. Bhatt
(Partner)
(Membership No. 046930)
(UDIN:22046930AINIMH5506)
Place: Mumbai
Date:24 May 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) In respect of its property, plant and equipment:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-
progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets.

(c) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment (capital

work-in progress and right of use assets) so as to cover all the items once every three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and
Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically verified by
the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined

by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed /
conveyance deed/Business Transfer Agreement provided to us, we report that, the
title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in (property, plant and
equipment and capital work-in progress) are held in the name of the Company as at
the balance sheet date.

(e) In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company

and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that the Company has not
revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets) and
intangible assets during the year.

(f) In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company

and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31 March 2022 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) In respect of its inventories:

(a) The inventories excluding stock with other third parties were physically verified during

the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its operations. In respect of inventory lying with the other
third party, confirmations were obtained by the management for the stocks held by
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them at year end. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of
time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the quarterly statements comprising sales, production, current assets and
current liabilities, wherever submitted by the Company with such banks or financial
institutions, are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of
the respective quarters. As informed by the management, the statement for the
quarter ended March 31, 2022 will be submitted to the bank basis audited financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

(i) The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and granted unsecured
loans to companies in respect of which:

(a) The Company has provided loans, stood guarantee during the year and details of
which are given below:

[ Loans Guarantees

"A. Aggregate amount provided during
the year: -
-Subsidiaries Rs. 197.36 crores Rs. 95 crores

B. Balances outstanding as at balance
| sheet date in respect of above cases* # ) N
-Subsidiaries Rs. 838.97 crores | Rs. 54.19 crores

*The amounts rEported above are at gfoss amounts, without considering provisiohs
made.
# Includes opening balances

The Company has not provided any advances in the nature of loans and security to
any other entity during the year.

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided and the terms and conditions of the
grant of all the above-mentioned loans provided during the year are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company'’s interest.

(¢) In respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are
regular as per stipulation.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted there is no overdue amount
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(¢) None of the loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company have
fallen due during the year.

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees
and securities, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting
under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory

dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,

Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the
Company have been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities in all
cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty
of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been

deposited as on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:
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- _ Forum where _ . . Amount | Amount
g:’ante af Nature of Dues Dispute is | :::::oudn:okzglt‘:; the (Rs In | unpaid (Rs
| Pending Crores) |in Crores)
ngh_Court 2008-10 to 20_12—13 i 942 7 54 |
Excise Duty & 1998 to 2005, 2010-
Ceritral sezv::lc_e _ Tax | CESTAT ggié, 1;013—15 and 11.42 10.92
| Excise Laws including interest e = AT ] |
| ' and penalty, as | Appellate
| | applicable. Authority upto : X -
Commissioner'’s 20607, 2003-2018 I 1.:32 1.19
_ level - R N
| Appellate
Goods and | Goods and | Authority upto .
Services Tax | Services Tax ' Commissioner’s 2019-2070 0.03
— level i o [ .
Sales Tax . [
Laws Salie_s_T?i( High Cogrt 2005 D_G_and 20_1_4—18 | 1.06 | o071
Custom Laws | Custom Duty CESTAT ] 2009-2012 1,57 | .41 |

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix) In respect of its borrowings:

(a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, terms loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima-facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries and associates.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies
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(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has made private placement of shares during the year in lieu of discharge
of balance consideration. For such allotment of shares, the Company has complied with the
requirements of Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, however, no funds were
raised. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of (fully
or partly or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.

(xi) In respect of frauds:

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of audit report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) In respect of internal audits:

(a) In our opinion the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date when performing our audit.

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi) In respect of registration u/s 45-1A:

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) is not applicable.

(b) The Group does not have any Core Investment Company as part of the group and
accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company
as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer
to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

—
\\, A~ AL 0

Rupen K. Bhatt

(Partner)

(Membership No. 046930)
(UDIN: 22046930AINIJMH5506)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2022



Piramal Pharma Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

As at As at
Note March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. Rs. in Crores Rs. in Crores
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 3 1,296.20 1,291.78
(b} Capital Werk in Pragress 54 155.28 79.34
{c) Intangible Assats 3 299.02 321.58
(d) Intangible Assets Under Development 55 45,82 41.68
(e} Right of Use Assat 45 13.76 13.45
(f) Financial Assets:
(1) Investments 4 2,597.28 1,591.52
{il) Loans 5 791.65 61381
{iii) Other Financial Assers 6 14,15 3,403.08 1095 2,215.08
(g} Other Non-Current Assets - i 32.67 25.28
Total Non-Current Assets 5,249.83 3,989.17
Current Assels
{a) Inventories B 481.28 420.88
(b) Financial Assets:
(i) Investments 4 37.01 -
(I} Trade Receivables 9 & 52 947.65 839.75
(iii) Cash B Cash Egquivalents 10 84.65 1456.73
(iv) Bank Balances Other Than (iii) above 11 5.62 5.62
(v} Loans 12 47.32 10.60
{vi} Other Financial Assets 13 27.48 1,149.73 100.28 1,102.98
{c) Other Current Assets i4 327.48 243.64
Total Current Assets 1,958.49 1,767.50
TOTAL ASSETS —T,208.32 —_— 5.756,67
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 15 1,185.91 994.60
(b} Share warrants 15 = 0.10
() Other Equity 16 3,881.43 3,105.92
Total Equity 5,067.34 4,100.62
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities;
(1} Borrowings 17 447 .61 =
(i) Lease Liability 45 7,55 T:87 7.37
(I} Other Financial Liabilities i8 .40 455.56 = -
{b) Provisions 19 10.74 £.59
(€} Deferred Tax Liabllities (Met) 20 157,54 170,42
Total Non-Current Liabilities 623.84 184.38
Current Liabilities
(2) Financial Liabilities:
(i} Borrowings 21 653,92 165.20
(i) Lease Liabllity 45 2.30 1.69
(iii) Trade Payables
Taotal autstanding dues of Micro anterprises and small enterprises 47 .65 26.61
Total autstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and small 53 567.58 557.51
enterprises
(iv] Other Financial Liabilitles 22 153,09 1,424.51 633,52 1,364.53
{b) Other Current Liabilities 23 40.64 46,57
{c) Frovisions 24 32.50 30.88
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Nat) 25 ——— U5 R | P
Total Current Liabilities 1,517.14 1,471.67
Total Liabilities 2,140.98 1,656.05
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES Z,208.32 5.756.67
The above Balanc ; b i ing
In terms of our report attached
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Charterad Accountants
" Nandini Piramal
Chairpersep
DIN : 0024
Rupen K. Bhatt ik hlsaraj Tanya Sanish
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary

Membership Number: 046930

Mumbai, May 24 2022 Mumbal, May 24 2022



PIRAMAL PHARMA LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

For the year ended For the period
March 31, 2022 March 04, 2020
Note To
March 31, 2021
No. Rs. in Crores Rs. in Crores
Revenue from operations 26 3,094.95 2,938.81
Other Income (Nat) 27 223.59 197.97
Total Income - 3,318.54 3,136.78
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 28 1,003.58 986,70
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 29 509.70 183.21
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 30 (3017} 57.86
Employea banefits expense 31 425,30 39515
Finance costs 32 53.55 4,71
Depreciation and amaortization expense 3845 130.64 143,64
Other expanses 33 789.14 £96.96
Total Expenses 2,861.84 2,468.23
Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 436.70 668.55
Exceptional Items 33 (12.47) 18.23
Profit before Tax 424.23 686.78
Less: Income Tax Expense 49
Current tax 96.34 104,98
Daferred Tax (Net) (15.18) 10.30
81.18 116 28
Profit after Tax 343.05 571.50
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (OCI), net of tax expense: as
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Remeasurement of Post Employment Benefit Obligations 0.39 {3.28)
Income Tax Impact on above 0.10 0.29 0.82 (2.46)
B. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Deferred gain ¢n cash flow hedge 8.66 7.66
Income Tax Impact on above (2.18) 6.48 (2.93) 5.73
Total Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the period, net of tax expense 6.77 3.27
Total Comprehensive Income for the period, net of tax expense 349.82 574.77
Earnings Per Equity Share (Basic) (Rs.) (Face value of Rs. 10/- each) a4 2.91 9.11
Earnings Per Equity Share (Diluted) (Rs.) (Face value of Rs. 10/- each) 44 2.91 9,11
The sbove Statement of Prefit and Loss should ba read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
In terms of our reporl etlached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
- Nandini Piramal
Chairparsan
DIN ; 00286092
Rupen K. Bhatt vivek ¥a raj Tanya Sanish
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary

Membership Number: 046330

Mumbai, May 24 2022 Mumbal, May 24 2022



Piramal Pharma Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Less : Profit for the period Mar 4,2020 to Gctober 5, 2020
Profit for the period Oct 6,2020 to Mar 31,2021
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Provision written back
Finance Costs considerad separately
Interest Income on Finandal assets
Dividend received
(Gain)/Loss on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment
Write-down of Inventories
Profit on Sale of Investment (Net)
Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes

Adjustments For Changes In Working Capital :

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets
- Trade receivables

- Other Current Assets

- Other Non Current Assets

- Other Financial Assets - Nan Current

- Inventories

- Other Financial Assets - Current

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
- Trade Payables

= Non - Current provisions

- Other Current Financial Liabilities

- Other Current Liabilities

- Current provisions

Cash Generated from Operations

- Taxes Pald (Net of Refunds)
Met Cash Generated from Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Property Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets

Purchase of Current Investments:

- In Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Current Investments:
- in Mutual Funds

Payment for purchase of pharma business
Interest Received

Other Bank Balances

Dividend received

Investment in equity shares of subsidiary
Investment in Associate

Loans to related parties (Net of repayments)
Transaction cost paid on acquisition of Subsidiary
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

For the For the period
year ended March 04, 2020
March 31, 2022 To
March 31, 2021
Rs. in Crores Rs. in Crores
436.70 668.55
= (319.44)
E 349.11
130.64 60.96
(60.13) {1.72)
53.55 4,71
(28.38) (16.29)
{90.66) (49.00)
0.91 0.05
(0.07) 13.97
(1,95) i
2.64 0.96
(2.87) (4.68)
440.38 358.07
(106.63) (286.52)
(83.84) (17.45)
1.05 4,83
(3.40) 12,82
(60.33) 95.36
62.70 (47.14)
85.56 27.58
4.54 (30.12)
3.56 (12.68)
(5.93) (5.50)
1.62 30.76
339.28 130.01
(84.08) (95.29)
255.20 34.72
(200.51) (58.11)
1.51 2.93
(1,438.00) -
1,402.93 =
- {3,710.00)
11,93 0.49
= (5.62)
B1.59 49.00
(790.73) (65.10)
(101.77) -
(176.03) (596.48)
(13.94) 5

(1,223.02) (4,382.89)




Piramal Pharma Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceads from Non - Current Borrowings

- Receipts

- Payments

Proceeds from Current Borrowings

- Recelpts

- Payments

Lease payments

- Principal

- Interest

Rights issue proceeds

Receipt from issue of equity shares

Proceeds from Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share Tssue
Payment against lapsad share warrants

Finance Costs Paid

Mark to market gains on forward contracts taken against the inflow from equity investment from
Carlyle

Dividend Paid
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents [(A)+(B)+(C)]

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at March 31, 2021 & March 04, 2020 respectively

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at March 31

Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of :
Cash on Hand
Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts

Note:

For the
year ended
March 31, 2022

Rs. in Crores

For the period
March 04, 2020
To
March 31, 2021

Rs. in Crores

700.00 -
830.78 473.39
(530.80) (383.01)

(2.11) (0.77)
(0.90) {0.42)
s 785.00
- 3,448.41
- 75.00
(0.10) =
(41.13) (4.29)
- 100.85
(50.00) -
505.74 4,494,16
(62.08) 145.99
145.73 0.74
84.65 146.73
0.05 .11
84.60 146,62
84.65 146,73

On October 01, 2021, the Company had alloted 9,657,423 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in lieu of cansideration payable to Piramal

Enterprises Limited amounting to Rs.592 crores.

On October 01, 2021, the Company had alloted 3,988,262 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in lieu of conversian of compulsory convertible
preference shares to CA Alchemy Investments (erstwhile CA Clover Intermediate II Investments) amounting to Rs. 75 crores.,

On October 04, 2021, the Company had issued 177,665,757 equity sharas as bonus shares to the existing shareholders in the ratio 5.674:1

During previous year, the Company had Issued 1,08,71,651 fully paid equity shares with face value of Rs.10 each and carrying security premium of Rs. 163.36 per
share, aggregating to Rs. 185 crore in exchange for 1,00,000 fully paid equity share of Rs.10 each of Piramal Healthcare Inc. having a carrying value of Rs 86.44
crores, acquired pursuant to agreement for purchase of Pharma business entered into between the Company and Piramal Enterprise Limited (Refer note 51).

The above Statement of Cash flow should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Rupen K. Bhatt
Partner
Membership Number: 046530

Mumbai, May 24 2022

Nandini Piramal

Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Tanya Sanish
Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 24 2022
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Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Piramal Pharma Limited (FPL) (Including its subsidiaries) Is one of India’s largest pharmaceutical companies.

In Pharma, through end-to-end manufacturing capabilities across 14 global facilities and a large global distribution network to over 100 countries, The Group sells a
portfolio of niche differentiated pharma products and provides an entire pool of pharma services (including in the areas of injectable, HPAPI etc.). The Company is also
strengthening Its presence in the Consumer Products segment In India.

PPL Is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Mumbai, India.

2a. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i)

i)

i)

Basis of preparation of financial statements
Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Sectien 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to the existing accounting standard
reguires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
Historical Cost convention

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and plan assets of defined benefit plans,
which are measured at fair value.

Investments in subsidiaries & associates

Subsidiaries:
Subsidiaries are all entities {including structured entities) over which the group has control. The Company controls an entity when the company (s exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of Lhe entity,

Associates:

An assoclate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence, Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but does not control or joint control over those policies.

Common control transactions :

Business combinations invelving entities that are controlled by the group are accounted for using the peoling of interests method as follows:
1) The assets and liabllities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. The Company has made accounting policy cholce to account investment
in associates and joint venture at a carrying cost as appearing In the books of acquiree.
2) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments are only made to harmenise accounting policies.

3) The difference, if any, between the amounts recerded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration |n the form of cash or other assets and the amount
of capital employed of the business of transferor is transferred to capital reserve.

4) The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods [s restated as If the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the
preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of combination. However, where the business combination had occured after that dale,
the prier peried information Is restated only from that date.




Piramal Pharma Limited
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

iv) Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land Is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property Plant & Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, If any. Direct costs are capitalised until the assets are ready for use and includes freight, duties, taxes and expenses incidental to
acquisition and installation. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of Property Plant &

Equipment are added to its carrying value only when it is probable that the future economic benefits from the asset will flow to the Company and cost can be reliably
measured.

Lasses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method ('SLM') over the estimated useful llves of the assets specified In Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013/ on the basis of technical evaluation, which are as follows:

Asset Class Useful life
Buildings* 10 years - 60 years
Roads 10 years

Furniture & Fixtures 3 years - 15 years
Plant & Equipment 3 years - 20 years
Continuous Process Plant 25 years

Office Equipment 3 years - 15 years
Maotor Vehicles 8 years

*|Jseful life of leasehold improvements is as per lease period
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

v) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impalrment losses, [ any.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The research and development (R&D) cost Is accounted in accordance with Tnd AS - 38 ‘Intangibles’.

Research

Research costs, Including patent filing charges, technical know-how fees, testing charges on animal and expenses incurred on development of a molecule till the stage
of Pre-clinical studies and Uil the receipt of regulatory approval for commencing phase I trials are treated as revenue expenses and charged off te the Statement of
Profit and Loss of respective year.

Development

Development costs relating to design and testing of new or Improved materials, products or processes are recognized as intangible assets and are carried forward under
Intangible Assets under Development until the completion of the project when they are capitalised as Intangible assels, If the following conditions are satisfied:

= It Is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use;

» Management intends to complete the asset and use or sell it;

» There is an abjlity to use or sell the asset;

« It can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

» Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset are available; and
» The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Intangible Assets with finite useful lives are amortized on a straight line basis over the following period:

Asset Class Useful life
Brands and Trademarks 10 - 15 years
Copyrights, Know-how {including qualifying Product Development Cost) and Intellectual preperty rights 4 - 15 years
Computer Saftware 3 - 6 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

A
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Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

wl)

wil)

Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there |s any Indication that an asset may be impaired. For the purposes of assessing Impairment, the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of
assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recaoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss
and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed Impalrment loss no longer exists or
may have decreased, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial llabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on Initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabllities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Investments and Other Financial Assets
lassificati
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

» those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Subsequent Measurement

For assets measured at fair value, gains and lasses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this
will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For Investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of inltial recognition to account for the equity Investment at fair value through other comprehensive Income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and anly when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Amortised cosk:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amertised cost.
A gain or loss on a debt Investment that is subseguently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship Is recognised in profit or loss when the
asset |s derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method, Subsequently,
these are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Method less any impairment losses.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at falr value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and |oss and presented net in
the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period In which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other Income,




Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising Impairment loss on financlal assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and other
contractual rights to recelve cash or other financial asset.

For trade recelvables or any contractual right to recelve cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the
Campany always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,

Further, for the purpase of measuring lifetime expected credit loss ("ECL") allowance for trade recelvables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted

under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted
for farward-leoking information,

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset |s derecognised only when:

s The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

o retains the contractual rights to recelve the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
to one or more reciplents.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In

such cases, the financial asset Is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency Is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reperting
period. For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except for
those which are designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity Instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual Interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments Issued are
recognised at the proceads received, net of direct issue costs,

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares are classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost until it is extinguished an conversion,

Financial liabilities

Al financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financlal liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial llability Is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it Is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allecating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective Interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees pald or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transactien costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financlal liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability,

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability far at least 12 months after the
reporting perind. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the

liability becomes payable on demand on the reperting date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, f the lender agreed, after the reporting periad and
before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains
and losses are determined hased on the amortised cost of the instruments

Financial Guarantee Contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee |s Issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently
at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.

The fair value of financial guarantees Is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual payments under the debt
instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of subsidiaries are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have explred. An exchange between with a
lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms Is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability.

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to thelr fair value at the end of each
reparting period, The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of
the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated,

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is
classified as a current asset or liabllity when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or
liability

(i) Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting:

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derlvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in the other comprehensive income in
cash flow hedging reserve within equity, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged Item on a present value basis from the inception of the hedge. The
gain or loss relating to the Ineffective portion Is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other gains/{losses).

(1) Derlvatives that are not designated as hedges:

The Company enters Into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through prefit or
loss.

Embeadded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in @ host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated, Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only If the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the

economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Ernbedded derivatives closely relatad to the host contracts are not
separated.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial Assets and Liahilities are offset and the net amount is reflected in the balance shest where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there Is an intention to settle the liability simultaneously. The |egally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and In the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or counterparty,

Trade Receivables
Trade receivahles are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision far impairment.

Inventories

Inventories comprise of Raw and Packing Materials, Work in Progress, Finished Goods (Manufactured and Traded) and Stores and Spares. inventories are valued at the
lower of cost and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost is determined on Weighted Average
basis, Cost |ncludes all charges in bringing the goods to their present location and condition, including other levies, transit insurance and receiving charges. The cost of
Work-in-progress and Finished Goods cormprises of materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads as applicable. Net realizable value is the
sstimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Employee Benefits

{1} Shart-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are prasented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

-ter loyee ions
The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the peried in which the employees render the related service.
They are tnerefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting
period using the projected unit credit method, The benefits are dizcounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related abligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities In the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months
after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. Long Term Service Awards are recognised as a liability at the present value of
the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date.

(iii) Post-employment obligations
The company operates the following post-employment schemes:

- Defined Contribution plans such as provident fund, superannuation, pension, employee state insurance scheme
- Defined Benefit plans such as provident fund and Gratulty

1n case of Provident fund, contributions are made te a Trust administered by the Company, except In case of certaln employess, where the Contributions are made to
the Regional Provident Fund Office.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Caompany's contribution to provident fund (in case of contributions to the Regional Provident Fund office), pension and employee state Insurance scheme are
considered as defined contribution plans, as the Company does not carry any further obligations apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis and are charged
as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made.
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x1)

xii)

xiii)

wiv)

Defined Benefit Plan

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit provident and gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit abligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net halance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost Is
included in emplayee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss,

remeasurement gains and losses arlsing from experience adjustments, changes in actuarial assumptions and return on plan assets (excluding interest income) are
recognised (n the period in which they occur, directly in ather comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings |n the statement of changes In equity and
in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past
service cost.

Bonus Plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, The Company recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the cbligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount Is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material},
The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as Interest expense.

Contingent liabllities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or maore uncertain future events not whaolly within the control of the company ar a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a rellable estimate of the amount cannot be made,

Revenue recognition
revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Sale of goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Company transfers Contrel of the product, Control of the product transfers upon shipment of
the product to the customer or when the product is made available to the customer, provided transfer of title to the customer occurs and the Company has not retained

any significant risks of ownership or future obligations with respect to the product shipped. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net off returns, trade allowances, rebates
and Indirect taxes.

Sale of Services: In contracts involving the rendering of services/development contracts, revenue is recognised at the point in time in which services are rendered. In
case of fixed price contracts, the customer pays a fixed amount based on the payment schedule. If the services rendered by the Company exceed the payment, a
Contract asset (Unbilled Revenue) Is recognised, If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract llability (Deferred Revenue) is recognised.

If the contracts Involve time-based billing, revenue is recognised for the amount to which the Company has a right to invoice.

Interest: Interest income from a financial asset Is recognised when it Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income Is accrued on a time basis, by reference Lo the amortised cost and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend: Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Foreign Currency Transactions

In preparing the financlal statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company's functional currency viz. Indian Rupee are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-manetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

Exceptional Items
When iterns of income and expense within profit or loss fram ordinary activities are of such size, nature or Incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the
performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such items is disclosed separately as Exceptional items.
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xv)

Axvi)

xwii)

xvill)

xix)

Leases
(a) IND AS 116, Leases

Effective March 04, 2020, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases", applled to all lease contracts existing on March 04, 2020 using the modified retrospective
method of transition, The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land & buildings.

At the date of commencement of the lsase, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which
it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted For any lease payments made at or prior to the

commencement date of the lease plus any [nitial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

The lease liability is Initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether It will exercise an extenslon or a termination option,

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land, bulldings and IT assets.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented (n the Balance Sheet and |ease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The following is the summary of practical expedlents elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfalio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date
2. Applied the exemption nat to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for |leasaes with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application

3, Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactiens are |leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17,

Taxes on Income

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included In the determination of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax s measured at
the amount expected to be paid to the tax autherities In accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and llabilities In the separate financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised If the temporary difference arises from the Initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
Iabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of geodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recoverad.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settied ar the asset realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recog nised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business cembination.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an Intention to settle the
asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are affset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against
liabllities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation
laws.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

i the cash flow statement, cash and cash eguivalents (ncludes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within berrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or canstruction of qualifying assets (i.e. those Property Flant & Equipments which necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use) are capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Segment Reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments', segment information has been given In the consolidated financial statements of the Company, which are
presented in the same annual report and therefore, no separate disclosure on segment Information is given In these financial statements.
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xx) Standards issued but not yet effective

xxl)

Xxii)

xxiil)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies.

(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:
Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specifiy that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acqguisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet
the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framewaork for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103, The Company does not
expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 - Pr ds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the
company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not
expect the amendments to have any impact In Its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either
be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The
amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company does nat expect the amendment to have any significant impact in (ts financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies the treatment of any cost or fees incurred by an entity in the process of derecognition of financial llability in case of repurchase of the debt
instrument by the issuer. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 106 - | Impr ts to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of |easehold improvements by the lessor in order to resoive any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease Incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that (llustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to
hawve any significant impact In its financial statements.

Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period,

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Crares as per the requirement of Schedule I, unless otherwise
stated,

Insurance Claim
Insurance Claim is recorded as an income on the basls of filing of insurance claim and corresponding claim receivable is recognised as an asset.

2b. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainties

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reparted
amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities} and the reported income and expenses during the year, The Management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual
results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

Estimation of uncertainty relating to COVID-19 global health pandemic

In assessing the recoverability of receivables and intangible assets the Company has considered internal and extarnal sources of information, including economic
forecasts and industry reports up to the date of approval of these standalone financial statements, The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions
used and based on current indicators of future economic canditions, the carrying amount of these assets represent the company's best estimate of the recoverable
amounts. As a result of the uncertainties resulting from COVID-19, the impact of this pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of
these financial statements and the Company will continue to manitor any changes to the futura economic conditions. Also refer note 3, 9 and 47(a).

Impairment loss in Investments carried at cost:

The Company conducts Impairment reviews of investments in subsidiaries / associates whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable or tests for impairment annually. Determining whether an asset s impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount, which
requires the Company to estimate the value in use which base on fsuture cash flows and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.




PIRAMAL PHARMA LIMITED
Notas to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3. PF ¥, PLANT & EQ) AND INTANGIBELE ASSETS
Rs. in Crores
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT
Particulars Opening Additions Deductions/ As at Dpcnlnu For the Deductions/ As at Ax at As at
Az at Adjustmants March 31, 2022 As at year Adjustments | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2022 march 31, 2021
April §, 2021 April 1, 2021
(a) # (8] (A-8)
Tangible Assets
Land Fraannkd 2r.a3 - = 21.03 = - - - 21.03 21,03
Bulidings 73813 15.68 - 752.7% 75.11 18,75 = 93.86 653.93 663.02
Roads ] = = 2.08 o.ev .22 + 1.08 0.99 131
Piant & Equipment X 912,09 &67.51 1248 968.21 kPR P 6E.72 10.o7 383.57 584.65 5@0.a7
[Furniture @nd fiztures 28.18 2.74 0,02 30.90 12:65 269 .02 15.33 15.57 15.52
Mator Yehicles 0.88 ooz 5 0,90 051 o160 0.61 0.29 0.37
Office equipmant 25.81 3.95 0.04 29.72 0.03 8.74
[Total (1) 1,729.30 53,98 12,54 1,510.84 10.12 1,296.20
Intanglbla Assets *
Brands and Trademarks + 451.51 813 - 459.64 158,05 3L.65 - 189.70 269.94 W3 a0
Copyrights, Know-how and ntallectual "
propesty rights 1779 - - 17.79 10.54 L76 - 12.30 5.48 : 7.25
Computer Sofftware 4046 1015 - 50,61 2522 612 - 3134 19.27 15,24
Product Know-how B.E7 - - 6.57 0.84 131 = 238 %31 5.6
Total (11) 516.33 16.28 - E34.61 194,75 40.84 - 235,59 .02 311.E
Grand Total (T+1T) 1 2,245.53 | 112.36 | 1384 238535 632,17 127.98 ] 10,12 | 750.03 | 1EsEan] 1,6139.36 |
* Material Imangible Assats as on March 31, 2022:
Aspot Class Carrying Value as at| Carrying Valua as a1 Remalning usaful Iifa
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 as on March 31, 2022
(Rs. Crores.} [Rs. Crores.)
Product-related Intangibles - Brands
and Trademarks 4 269,94 293.46 2 years to 15 years

# Depraciation for the period ended March 31, 2022 indludes depraclation amounting to ®5 7 BB Crores (Previous Year Rs. 5,12 Crures) on assuis used for Reseach and Devalopmant lacations at Ennang and Mumbai.
4 Certain Brands are in the process of boleg registered i tha nama of the Company, for which the necessary application has been made with trada mark registry.

Considering incarmal and external sources of infsrmation, He Company has evaluated at the end of the reporting perlod, whether there [s any indicaticn that any |ntangibie assut may be Impaired Where sueh indicetion exists, the Company has astimated
the recoverabls amourt of the intangible assets based on ‘value in use’ method. The finandal projections on the basis of wnich the future cagh Tiows have besn estimated consder (a) #n increass i aconomic uncertalntiss dus to COVIO-19, [}

reassasmmen: of the decount retes, (o) ravisltng the growth rates factored while arriviag at terminal valuz, and these variakles have besn subjeclad 1o 2 sensitivity analysis, The earrying amount of the intengible assets represent the Company's best
astimate of the recoverable amounts,

Rafer Note 36B(a) for the contractual caplcal commitments for purchase of Proparty, Plant & Equipmant,
There has been no revaluation of Property, Plart and Equipment (PPE} and Intangibles dunng the year endad March 31,3023,
The Company. helds the ttle deeds of all Immovable properties in their name.

Rafer note 54 and 55 far ageing of Capital Work in Progress and Intanglble Assats under devsiopment




PIRAMAL PHARMA LIMITED
Motes to lnanclal stabements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Rs.inCrores
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION oo g
[ Farticulars Brlance Aoquired Additions Deductions / A= at Balance Acquired | Foriha | Deductions/ Ba at s at
As at far the perlod Adjustments March 31, 2021 Asat parlod | Adjustments | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2021
March 4, 2020 March 4, 2020
refer note ++ (A) rafar note ** # (8] (A-B)
Tangible Assats
Lant Freehold @ 21.03 - - 21,03 & 21,03
Butldings @ 737.80 15,15 14,82 738,13 62,15 L1282 8,66 7511 663.02
Foads 2.08 - - 2.08 .62 024 - 087 121
Plant & Equipment 872.66 67,95 27.52 813.08 276,38 7164 15.10 332,92 580.17
Furnitura and fixsures 2837 1.58 1.75 28.18 11.08 .76 115 12,66 15.52
Hetar vehiclas .86 0.02 - 0.8 040 a1 0.51 0.37
Orrice equipment 25.65 2.87 271 460 145 1535 10,46 |
[Total (1) 188848 £7.55 46,60 98.97 24.36 d37.82 129178
Intangible Assets *
Brands and Trademarks + 45151 - - 451,51 123,59 3486 = 158.05 293.46
::;;ﬂrﬁym%muw-mw Spcib el 1273 - - 17.79 B.78 1.76 - 10.54 7.25
Computer Software 3,12 721 0.87 40.46 18,73 6.27 0.78 15,22 15,28
Praduct iKnow-how 232 &57 232 657 148 1.08 157 0.94 5.63
[Toml (1) 505.74 13.78 5.1 51633 153,66 CENT) 735 194.75 — 32158 |
[Erand Total (111} 1 219419 | 35.95 3,245.53 _516.37 143,51 6.7 ] 632,17 1,613.26 |
= Material Intangible Assats &5 on March 31, 2021
Asnet Class Carrying Value as at Ramaining useful lita
March 31, 2021 as on March 31, 2021
{Rs Crores)

;r\;d::::’r:rl"a::ssintanubles - Brands 297,46 3 years ta 12 years

=+ Rafer Note 51
# Deprecation for the period ended March 31, 2021 indudes depradation amounling ko B5.9,12 Crores on sssats used for Research and Deyalopment lacations at Ennore and Mumbai.
+ Certain Brands are in the process of Deing registered in the name of the Company, far which the necassary spphication has bean mada with trade mark registry.

@ These lend and bulldings were acquired, DUFSUENE t0 BuSiness Transfer Agresment between the Company and Piramal Erterprizes Limited (PEL) (refer note 517 The Campany has completed the process of tranaferring ttie deads in it's name dusing the
currenk year ended March 31,2022,

Description of itam of property

(Gross carrying value| Titie deeds held in ‘Whether titie deed holder is o Property held since | Reason for not baing held
(Rs, Crores) the name of promater, director or relative of | which date in the name of the
promoter,/director or employes of company
promotar/ director

Freshold land [ocated at Ennore 2378 PEL Promcter (Oczober 06, 2020
admeasuring 75.38 Acres wikh the

Land parcels giong with the
DUllINDE SPEUMENAnt ereto

bullgings appurtanant theesta
acquired pursuant to Business

Freanoid land I0cAted at G0.52 PEL Promoter Getober 08, 2020 | Transfer Agresment dated
Digwal/Hyderabad admesswing B7.00 June 26, 2020 between the
acres & 47 Guntas with the buildings Company &nd Piramal
appurtenant thereto Enterprises Limited is yet to
e registerad in the name of
the Company.

Tonsdering Internal and extemal SOUrCes of Informatien, the Cempany has svalusted ab the end of the reporng periad, whathar Siare & any Tndication thet any (ntangible assat may Be Impaired. Where such Indication exlsts, the Company has estmated
the recoveranle amount of the intangible assets based on 'value in use' method. The financial projections on the basis of which the futiee cash flows have besn estimated consides (2) an increass in économic uncertainties due to COVID-19, (b)
reassessment of the discount rates, () revisiting the growth rates Factored while arriving at termingl value, and these vangolss have been subjecied to a sersitivicy analysis. The carrying &mount of the intangible assets represant the Company's best
wstimate of the recoverably smourts.

Rafer Mote 36B(a) for the contractual capital coMmMIBMENTS far purchas2 of Froperty, Plant & Equipment.
Thars has been no reveluation of Property, Plant and Equipment (PRE) and Intangiiiles during the year ended March 31,2071

fefer note 54 and 55 For ageing of Capital Work in Progress ang INtnginie ASSets under deyelopment




Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

4. Investments

Investments - Non Current:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

(Rs. in Crores)

(Rs. in Crores)

Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid up, uniess otherwise stated):
A. In Subsidiaries (Unquoted) - At cost:

i Piramal Healthcare Inc.

Equity Contribution 55.67 55.67
Capital Contribution (Guarantee) 30.77 B6.44 30.77 B86.44
il Piramal Dutch Holdings M.V, 1,390.54 1,390.54
il Piramal Healthcare UK Limited {Capital Contribution - Guarantee) 1.06 1.06
. Piramal Healthcare Canada Limited(Capital Contribution - Guarantee) 2.21 2.21
. PEL Pharma Inc. 6.54 6.54
vi. Convergence Chemicals Private Limited [CCPL)@ 100.81 100.81
vii. Hemmo Pharmaceuticals Private Limited * 903.99 -
2,491.59 1,587.60
B. In Associates :
Unquoted - At Cost:
i Allergan India Private Limited 392 3.92
li. Yapan Bio Private Limited (Face Value of Rs, 10 each) ** 101.77 s
105.69 3.92
Non Current Investments 2,597.28 1,591.52

+On June 22, 2021, tha Company completed the acquisition of 100% stake in Hemmeo Pharmaceuticals Private Limited ("Hemmo') pursuant to an agreement entered on March 31,
2021 for an upfront cash consideration of Rs. 775 crores and earn-outs linked to achievement of milestones. The Company has completed the purchase price allocation of the
assets/liabilities acquired and consequently, maasurement period changes have been adjusted to the above investment. palance consideration payable is Rs 89.91 crores.

*% On December 20, 2021, the Company acquired 27.78% stake In Yapan Bio Private Limited ('Yapan') for a consideration of s, 101,77 Crores.

@ CCPL was joint venture between the Company and Navin Flourine International Limited upto February 24,2021 having carrying value of Rs. 35.71 Crores as on that date, On
February 24,2021 ,the Company has acquired balance 49% stake held by Navin Flourine International Limited in CCPL for a cash consideration of Rs. 65.10 Crores, Post this

acruisition, CCPL is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Investments - Current:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Quantity Amount
(Rs. in Crores)

Quantity Amount
(Rs. in Crores)

Investment in Mutual Funds (Quated) - at FVTPL
Kotak Overnight Fund Growth - Direct
UTI Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan Growth

1,94,100 22.01
51,550 15.00

Current Investments

37.01




Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

5. LOANS - NON-CURRENT

Loans (Unsecured And Considered Good)
Loans to related parties (refer Note 38)

TOTAL

As at
March 31, 2022
Rs. in Crores

791.65

791,65

As at
March 31, 2021
Rs, in Crores

613.81

613.81

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall lend or invest in a Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) identified by or on behalf of the Company. Further, there are no funds received from any Party(s)
(Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") identified by or on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

6. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRENT

Security Deposits

TOTAL

7. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Advance tax (Net of provision for tax of Rs. 1.05 Crores)
Capital Advances
Advances recoverable

TOTAL

14,15

14.15

6.61
1.83
24.23

32.67

10,75

10.75

1.43
23.85

25.28




Piramal Pharma Limited
Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022
Rs. in Crores

8. INVENTORIES
Raw and Packing Materials [Includes in transit of Rs, Nil {Previous Year Rs, 0,24 Crores)] 233.21
‘Work-in-Progress 196.18
Finished Goods 15,75
Stechk-in-trade D.01
Stores and Spares 36.13
TOTAL 481,28

Note:
1. The cost of Inventaries recognised as an expense during the year was Rs. 1,537.18 Crores. (Previous year Rs. 1,275.27 Crores)

2. The cost of inventaries recognised as an expense includes credit of Rs, 0.07 Crores {Pravious Year Rs. 0.37 Crores) In respect o
0.30 Crores (Frevious year Rs. 13,60 Crores) In respect of provisions for slaw moving/nan moving/expired/near expiry products.

3, Refer note 2{a){ix) for policy for valuation of Inventaries.
4. Refer note 21 for invantories hypothecaled as security against borrowings.

As at
March 31, 2022
Rs. in Crores

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured

(2) Considerad Good 9449.50 841,48
Less; Expected Credit Loss an (a) (1.85) 947.65 (1.73)
(b) Considered Doubtful 25.42 22.90
Less: Expectad Credit Loss on (b} (25.42) - (22,90

TOTAL 947.65

The credit period on sale of goods generally ranges from 7 to 150 days.
The Company has a Credit Risk Management Felicy for its Pharmaceuticals Manufacturing and Services business. For ever

performs a credit rating check using an external cradit agency. 1f a customer clears the credit rating check,
The credit limits for all the customers are reviewed on an engoing basis.

the credit |imit for that customer is derived using internally docurm

Of the Trade Receivables balance as at March 31, 2022 of Rs. 947.65 Crores, (Previous year Rs. 839.75 Crores) the top 3 customers of the Company represent the balance of
(Previous year Rs, 303.88 Crores) as at March 31, 2022. There was one customer (Previous year Three) who represents more than 5% of total balance of Trade Receivables,

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected eradit loss allswance for External Trade Receivables based on a provision matrix
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking information including the likellhood of increased credit risk considering emerging situations due
Information, The Company has concluded that the carrying amount of the trade recelvables represent the Company's best estimate of the recoverable amounts. The expected cred
based on the agelng of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. Tha provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as under:

As at
March 31, 2021
Rs. in Crores

213,43
145,39
34.65
1.73
25.68

420.88

f writa downs of inventory to net realisable value and expense of Rs.

As at
March 31, 2021
Rs. in Crores

838,75

839.75

y new customer [except established large pharma companies), the Company
ented scoring systems.

Rs. 353.50 Crores

. The provision matrix takes inte account
ta COVID-19 based on extenal sources of

it loss allowance i3

Aad

March 31, 2022

Agslng Expected credit
loss (%) - For
external
customers
Less than 365 days 0.30%
Mare than 365 days 100.00%
(Rs. in Crores)
Ageing of Expected credit loss As at As at|
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within dus date 1.42 1.43
After Due date 25.85' 23.20
Total 37.37] 24,63
(Rs. in Crores}
Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance: For the year, Period ended)|

March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of tha period 24.63 14.06
Add: Net Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses 2,64 10,57
Balance at the end of the period 27.27 24.63

]
For ageing of trade recelvables, refer Note 52
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10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

- Cash and Cash equivalents

|. Balance with Banks :
= Current Accounts

Il Cash en Hand

TOTAL
11. OTHER BANK BALANCES
Margin Money
TOTAL
12, LOANS - CURRENT ( ad and C id d Good)

AT AMORTISED COST ¢

Loans Receivables from Related Parties (refer note 28)

TOTAL

13, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT
Security Deposits
Guarantes Commission recelvable
Derivative Financial Assats
Unbilled revenues #
Other Receivables fram Related Partles (refer note 38)
Interest Accrued
Others *

TOTAL

# Classified as financial asset as right to consideration (s unconditional upen passage of time,
* previpus year mainly Includes Insurance claim of Rs. 6.42 Crores toward fire at Ennore plant

14. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

uUnsacured and Considered Good :

- Advances

Balance with Government Authorities
Prepayments

Claims Receivable

TOTAL

As at
March 31, 2022
Rs. in Crores

84.60
0.05

Jw
o,
B
um
o
~N

47.32

2.98

6.26
2.51
12.38
0.14
2.37

83.04
228.95
13.97
1.52

As at
March 31, 2021
Rs, in Crores

146,62
0.11

146.73

10.60

\J

4,69
0.32
16.36
21.47
41.64
0.16
15.64

7012
161.50
7.69
4.33




Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

As at As at
Mar 31,2022 Mar 31,2021
Rs. in Crores Rs, in Crores
15. SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
1,50,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,500,00 1,500.00
10,00,00,000 compulsarily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 1000 100,00
1,600.00 1,600.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
1,18,59,13,5C6 {previous year 95,46,02,064) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid. 1,185.91 944,60
TOTAL l( 185.91 994.60
(i) Movement in Equity Share Capital
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Mo. of shares Rs, in Crores Mo, of shares Rs. in Crores
At the beginning of the year 99,46,02,064 984,60 10,000 0.01
Add: Issued during the period
Rights Tssue - Piramal Enterprises Limited = - 78,50,00,000 785.00
Preferential Issue - Piramal Enterprises Limited 96,57,423 9.65 1,06,71,651 10.67
Preferential Issue - CA Alchemy Investments (erstwhile CA Clover Intermadiate [T Investments) 19,88,262 359 19,89,70,413 198,92
Bonus Shares - Piramal Enterpries Limited 14,19,10,732 141,91 -
Bonus Shares - CA Alchemy Investments (erstwhile CA Clover Intermed It ] 3,57,55,025 33,76 - =
At the end of tha pariod 1.13,59,&505 1,185.91 99,46,02,064 994.60
(i) _Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Particulars As nt March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Mo, of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Piramal Enterprises Limited - Parent Company 44,72,49,806 79.88% 79,56,81,651 B0.00%
CA Alchemy Investments (erstwhile CA Clover Intermediate II Investments) 23,86,63,700 20.12% 15,89,20,413 20.00%
(ill) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years i diately pr ding the t shoet date:
Particulars Fi ial Year No. of shares
Allotment of equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each as bonus shares to the existing shareholders in the ratio 5.674:1 2021-22 17,76,65,757
Allotment of equity shares of face value Rs.10 each fully paid-up in lieu of conversion of compulsory convertible preference shares to CA 2021-22 39,88,262
Alchemy Investments (arstwhile CA Clover Intermediate 111 ) (Refer note 21},
Allatment of equity shares of face value Rs, 10 each fully paid-up in lleu of conslderation payable to Piramal Enterprises Limited. 2021-22 96,57,423
Allotment of equity shares of face value Rs.10 each fully paid-up in lisu of transfer of stake held by Piramal Enterprises Limited in Firamal 2020-21 1,06,71,651
Healthcare Inc. to the Company,

{lv) Terms and Rights attached to aquity shares

Equity Shares;
The Company has one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs, 10/~ per share, Each shareholder is eiigible for cre vote per share heid. The dividend if declared by the Board of Directors |5 subject to

the approval of the shar in the ing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of
the Company after distribution of all praferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding,

v}

Shara Warrants: Re. inCrares
Balance as at March 04, 2020 =

Tssued during the period (10,00,00,000 share warrants having face value Rs. 10/- each were [ssUed to Piramal Enterprisas Limited) a.n
Balance as at March 31, 2021 0.10
Lapsed during the year (010}
Balance as at March 31, 2022 =
{vi} Shareholdings of Promoter
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year as at March 31, 2022
%a Change during
Promoter Name No. of shares Y%of total shares the yaar
Piramal Entarprisas Limited 94,72,49,806 79.88% 0.12%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year as at March 31, 2021

%o Change during

MNo. of shares the year

Promoter Name %aof total shares

Piramal Enterprises Limited 79,56,81 651 80.00% Mot applicable

On November 10, 2021, interim dividand of Rs. 0,42 per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10/- each) amounting to Rs. 50 Crores was paid to holders of fully paid equity shares. The Finance Act 2020 fas
repealed the Dividend Distributien Tax {DDT) hence DOT is not applicable,

Qn May 24, 2022, final dividend of Rs. 0.56 per equity share {face value of Rs. 10/- sach) amounting to Rs. 67 Crares has been recommended by the Board of Directors which is subject to approval of the
shareholders.On May 24, 2022, final dividend of Rs. 0,56 per equity share (face value of Rs, 10/~ each} amounting to Rs. 67 Crores has been recommended by the Board of Directors which is subject to
| of the

PP




Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022

16. OTHER EQUITY

Capital Reserve

(This reserve is an outcome of the Husiness transfer
Company.)

Securitles Premium

{Securities Premium is on account of jssue of
2013.)

Cash Flow Hedging Reserve

(The Company uses hedaing instruments as part of its management of farei
sales, Amounts recognised in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to
statement of Profit and Loss. To the extent these hedges are effective,
Cash Flow Hedging Reserve. (Refar Note 47(d)))

Retained Earnings
(The retained earnings are the profits that the company has earned to date less any dividend ar

TOTAL
Note - Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for mavement in ressrve

17. BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT
Secured - at amortized cost
(1} Term Loan from financial |istitution
(ii} Redeemable Non Convertible Debenture

(Business combination) from Piramal Fnterprises Limitad {Holding Company) to the

As at
March 31,2022
Rs. in Crores

(718.34)

3,725.18

equity shares, The reserve will be utilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act,

12.21

an currency risk associated with its Foreign Currency forecasted
Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged items affect the
the change in the fair value of hedging instrument is recognised in the

B62.38

distributions paid to investors)

3,881.43

24B.46
199,15

_—

447,61

As at
March 31,2021
Rs. in Crores

(71B.34)

3,249.49

73

3,105.92

e —

TOTAL 447,61 -
Terms of ¥ ¢ nature of ity & rate of int in casa of S Loans
A. Term Loan from other than Banks -Rupee Loans *
(Rs. in Crores)
Principal Principal
ding as at| O g as at
Nature of Security Terms of repayment March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
-
First ranking pari passu charge on identified Tangible Assets and an exclusive Repayable on May 31, 2023 500,00 -
charge over |dentifled [ntangible Assets,
The coupon rates for the above loans are 7.49% & 7,70% per annum.
*Including current portion
B. Redeemable Non Convertibla Debentures *
(Rs. in Crores)
Principal Principal
L ing as at( O s at
Mature of Security Particulars Terms of repayment March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
First pari- pasu charge over pool of selected tangible and intangible assets, 2000 (Previaus Year: Mil) (Payable|The amount of Rs.200 Crores i8] 200,00 -
Annually) T7.50% Secured Rated|redeemable at par in equal annual
Unlisted Red ble Non Conwvertibl payment-at the end of 3rd, 4th and 5th)
Debentures of Rs,1,000,000 each year from the date of drawdown with a put]
and call option at the and of 3 years and 4
Years,

* Company has not received any funds to lend or invest in ather parsons or entities on bebalf of the Funding party.

The Company has utilisad the borrowings (including current borrowings) for the purpose for which they were taken.
18, OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - NON-CURRENT
Contingent consideration Payabie (Refer note 4)

TOTAL

19, NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS
Provision for emplayee benefits {Refer note 37)

TOTAL

20. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Dofarred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets) on account of temporary differences 1
- Property, Plant and Equipment and Tntangibie Assets

0.40

0.40

10.74

10.74

166,49
- Falr value measurement of derivative contracts 1.76
- Recognition of lease rant expense (8.14)
- Remeasurament of defined benefit obligation (0.72)
- Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables [0,99)
- Debt EIR impact 0.58
- Expenses that are allowed on payment basis {9.44)

Refer Note 49 far movement during the periad

157.54

167,25

4.30
(0.07)
(0.52)
(0.24)

170.42




Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

21, BORROWINGS - CURRENT

(a) Loans repayable on demand

Secured - At Amortised Cost
Loans from banks ;

- Warking capital Demand Loan
- Packing Credit Loan

Current maturity of long-term loans (refer note 17)

Unsecured
Compulsery Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) at Rs. 10 each #

TOTAL

As at

March 31,2022
Rs. in Crores

200.03
190,18
390.21
263.71
653.92

30,00
60.20

As at
March 31,2021
Rs. in Crores

90.20

75.00

165.20

Description of loan

Terms of repayment

Rate of Interest

Secured Loans:

Working capital Demand Loan*®

At Call

4,50 % to 5.00 % pa

Packing Cradit Loan=*

At Call

4,50 % to 5.01 % pa

Terms of repayment, nature of security & rate of interest In case of Secured Loans:
* Working ital Demand Loan

Rs. in Crores)

Principal
Pﬂnflpal Dutstanding as
Nature of Security Terms of rapayment [ g as at at March 3L
March 31, 2022 2021 &
First parl-passu charge aver entire current assets of the company , both present and future Repayable on September 9, 2022 30.00 -
First pari-passu charge over entire current assets of the company , both present and future Repayable on September 2, 2022 30.00 -
First pari-passu charge over entire current assets of the company , both present and future Repayable on August 5, 2022 35.00 -
First pari-passu charge over entire current assets of the company , both present and future Repayable on August 1, 2022 20.00 -
First pari-passu charge over entire current assets of the company , both present and future | Repayable on luly 27, 2022 25.00 -
First pari-passu charga over entire current assets of the company , both present and future | Repayable on June 8, 2022 30.00 -
First pari-passu charge over entire current assets of the company , both present and future | Repayable on June G, 2022 30.00 -
First pari-passu charge over entire current assets of the compary , both present and fulure | Repayable on May 24, 2021 = 30.00
*= packing Credit Loan Rs. in Crores)
Principal
Principal ¢
Nature of Security Terms of 1 ding as at n:t Ma::rllﬂ.‘lgl“
March 31, 2022 e '
First pari-passu charge over the company's Stocks & Recelvables Repayable on September 18, 2022 50.00 -
First pari-passu charge over the company’s Stacks & Receivables Repayable on September 12, 2022 50.00 =
First pari-passu charge over entire current assets of the company , both present and future | Repayable on June 24, 2022 40,00 -
First pari-passu charge over entire current assets of the company , beth present and future | Repayable on June 10, 2022 50.00 =
First pari-passu charge over entire currant assets of the company , both present and future | Repayzble on May 4, 2021 - 60.20

# CCPS shall compulsarily and mandaterily be converted into Equity Shares on October 6, 2021. Conversion price for CCPS shall be above the price determined in accordance
with the Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019, as amendad from time to time.
Dividend @ 0.00001% shall ba payabla to the investor at the end of the 15 month period from the date of issuance |.e. October 6, 2020.

Investor shall not have voting rights in respect of CCPS until the CCPS are fully converted.

Conversion of CCPS te Equity (Allotted ta CA Alchemy Investments) : 7,50,00,000 CCPS were canverted into equity shares on 15t October 2021, Pursuant to conversion of the
CCPS, 39,88,262 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each were allottad to CA Alchemy Invastments.




Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
As at
March 31,2022
Rs, in Crores

22, OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT

Employee related liabilities 36.37
Payable to related party (Refer note 38 & 15) 1.61
Capital Creditors 2.25
Security Deposits Recelved 2.60
Other payables 20.75
Conlingent Consideration Payable {Refer note 4) BO.51

TOTAL 153.09

23. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advances from Customers 26.37
Statutory Dues 8,10
Deferred Revenue 6,17

TOTAL 40.64

24, CURRENT PROVISIONS

Proviston for Employee Benefits (Refer note 37) 32.50
TOTAL 32.50

25. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Provision for Income Tax [Net of advance Tax of Rs.76.85 Crares (Previous year 19.49
Rs.95.29 Crores))]

TOTAL 19.49
—_—

As at
March 31,2021
Rs. in Crores

37.26
592.00
1.73
2.53

633.52

33.25
391
G.41

46.57

30.88

30.88

9.69

H




Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

26. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Sale of products
Sale of Services

Other operating revenues:
-Miscellaneous Income =

TOTAL
* Previous year includes insurance claim of Rs.5.39 Crores in respect of Ennore fire.

Disaggregate Revenue Information

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
Rs. in Crores

2,677.15

30042  2,977.57

a3 11738
309495

For the period
March 04, 2020 To

March 31, 2021
Rs. in Crores

2,477.52
422,23 2,899.75
39.06 39.06

23881

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by major preduct and timing of transfer of goods ar services for each of our business segments. The
Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cashflows are affected by industry, market and ather

economic factors.

(Rs. In Crores)

Revenue by product line/ timing of transfer of goods/ services

For the year ended March

For the period

31, zo022 March 04, 2020 to March 31,
2021
At Point in At Point in
s Over time Hlha Over time
Pharmaceuticals 1,935.20 300,42 1,950.32 42223
Over the counter products 741.95 = 527.20 -
Total 2,677.15 300.42 2,477.52 422.23
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contract price (Rs. in Crores)

Particulars

For the year ended March

For the period

31, 2022 March 04, 2020 to March 31,
2021
Sale of products and services at transaction price 3,029.41 3,013.04
Less: Discounts (51.64) (113.29)
Revenue gnised on sale of prod and services 2,977.57 2,899.75
27, OTHER INCOME
Interest Income on Financial Assets (at amartized costs) 28,38 20,70
Dividend Income

- On Non-current Equity [nstruments In Associates 90.66 124,54
Profit on Sale of Property Plant & Equipment (Net) - 0.33
Profit an Sale of Investment (Net) 1.94 -
Other Gains & Losses:

- Forelgn Exchange Galn (Net) 37.20 3i7.10
Write back of liabllities no longer payable 60.13 6.74
Miscellaneous Income 5.28 B.56

TOTAL 223,59 197.97




Piramal Pharma Limited
Notes to Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 3

28, COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Balance acquired as at March 4, 2020 (refer nute 51)
Opening Inventory as at April 01, 2021

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing Inventory

TOTAL

29, PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Traded Goods

TOTAL

30. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-

OPENING STOCKS :
Work-in-Progress
Finished Goods
Stock-in-trade

BALANCE ACQUIRED AS AT MARCH 4, 2020 (refer note 51) :
Work-in-Progress
Finished Goods
Stock-in-trade

CLOSING STOCKS :
Waork-in-Progress
Finished Goods
Stock-in-trade

TOTAL

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

1, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

145.39

34.65
1,73

196,18
15.75
0.01

Salaries and Wages (Previous year include corporate Expense allocation pertaining to

pharma business transferred to the Company of Rs, 25,92 Crores).

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 37)
Gratuity Expenses (Refer Note 37)
Staff Welfara

TOTAL

32. FINANCE COSTsS

Finance Charge on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Other borrowing costs

TOTAL

Rs. In Crores

213,43
1,023.46
233.21

100588

509.70

~ 509.70

181.77

For the period
March 04, 2020 To
March 31, 2021
Rs. in Crores

171.74

1,028.39
213.43

986.70

183.21

183.21

193.04

46,59
= 239.63

411.94

368.90

16.97
3.67
35.76

425.30

53.36
0.19

53.55

14539
34.65
173 181.77

57.86

s 346.43

15.06
5.54
28.12

395.15
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Notes to Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the period
March 04, 2020 To
March 31, 2021

Rs. in Crores Rs. in Crores
33. OTHER EXPENSES

Processing Charges 8.94 8.58
Consumption of Stores and Spares Parts 53.97 47.50
Cansumption of Laboratery materials 48.56 44 83
Power, Fuel and Water Charges 68,97 68.08
Repairs and Maintenance

Buildings 26.63 16.71

Plant and Machinery 3897 33.79

Others 0.32 65,92 0.04 50.54
Rent

Premises 0.41 4.90

Other Assets 9.20 0.61 6.10 11,00
Rates & Taxes 40.09 15.57
Insurance 17.37 13.02
Travelling Expenses 19.75 15.40
Directors' Cornmission 0.72 0.45
Directors' Sitting Fees 0.28 0.03
Expected Credit Loss on Trade Recelvables 2.64 10.57
Loss due to fire 3 3.74
Loss on Sale of Property Plant & Equipment (Net) 0.91 -
Advertisement and Business Promotion Expenses 122,94 85.53
Donations §.63 1.49
Freight 52.50 42,10
Export Expenses 1.18 2.25
Clearing and Forwarding Expenses 0.25 5.74
Communication and Fostage 493 5.96
Printing and Stationery 4.80 4.56
Claims - 3.99
Legal Charges 1.78 1,70
Professional Charges 36.70 29.18
Royaity Expense 15.20 26.26
Service Charges (Previous year include ctorporate Expense allocation pertaining to pharma 94.83 101.29
business transferred to the Company Rs. 27 43 Crores)
Infarmation Technology Costs 19.76 7.05
R & D Expenses (net) 61,94 69.14
Miscellaneous Expenses 25.97 19.41

TOTAL o 78939 696,96
Note:

Details in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure:

- Gross amount required to be spent during the year - Rs.6.02 Crores (Previous year: Rs. Nil )

- Amount of expenditure incurred Rs.6.30 Crores (Previous year: - Rs. Nil )

- Shortfall at the end of the year Rs.Nil (Previous year: - Nil)

- Total of previous years shortfall Rs.Nil (Previous year :Nil)

- Reason for shortfall - Not Appicable

- Nature of CSR activities - Education programme in Districts of Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, Uttarakhand, Odisha, Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka, Kerela, Tamil Nadu and Telangana,

- Details of related party transactions - Nil

- Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the movernents |n the provision during the year shall be shown separately. - Nat
Applicable
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34, Exceptional Items

Transaction cost related to acquisition of Subsidiary

Write off of certain property plant and equipment and intanglble assets under development pertaining to
Mumbal R & D center
Mark to market gains on forward contracts taken against the inflow from equity investment from Carlyle

Certain transaction cost related to business combination (refer note 51)

TOTAL

35. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) (NET OF TAXES)
Remeasurement of post-employment henefit obligations
Deferred gains on cash flow hedge

TOTAL

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
Rs. in Crores

(12.47)

0.29
6.43

For the period
March 04, 2020 To
March 31, 2021
Rs. in Crores

(37.43)

100.85
(45.19)

18.23

(2.46)
573

3.27
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36 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A Contingent Liabilities :

i. Appeals filed in respect of disputed demands:
Sales Tax

Central / State Excise / Service Tax / Custom
Labour Matters
Stamp Duty

Claim by third party against the company not acknowledge as debt

Note: Future cash outflows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of
judgments/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

ii. Unexpired Letters of Credit

B Commitments :

a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for

b. The Company has imported raw materials at concessional rates, under the Advance
License Scheme of the Government of India, to fulfil conditions related to quantified
exports in stipulated period

Refer note 38.3 for performance guarantees

As at
March 31, 2022
Rs. in Crores

1.0
23.76
1.56

11.86

2.36

32.99

28.38

As at
March 31, 2021
Rs. in Crores

1.06

13.38
1.10
9.37
3.00

0.28

34.07

12,96
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37 Employee Benefits :

Brief description of the Plans:

ther I igations:
Leave Encashment, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyend 12 months from the end of the year are treated as other long term employee
benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise,

Long Term Service Awards are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date.

Defined Contribution plans:

The Company’s defined contribution plans are Provident Fund (in case of certain employees), Superannuation, Employees State Insurance Fund and
Employees’ Pension Scheme (under the provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952). The Company has no
further obligation beyond making the contributions to such plans.

Post-employment benefit plans:
Gratuity for employees in India is as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a peried of 5 years are
eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination Is the employess last drawn basic salary per month computed

proportignately for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in
India.

The Company’s Gratuity Plan is administered by an insurer and the Investments are made in various schemes of the trust. The Company funds the plan
on a periodical basis.

In case of certain employees, Provident fund is administered through an in-house trust. Periodic contributions ta the trust are invested in various
instruments considering the return, maturity, safety, etc., within the overall ambit of the Provident Fund Trust Rules and investment pattern notified
through the Ministry of Labour investment guidelines for exempted provident funds.

These plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end

of the reporting period on government bonds. Plan investment is a mix of investments in government securities, equity, mutual funds and other debt
instruments.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt
investments.

Longevity risk

The present vaiue of the definad benafit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during
and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liahility.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to trust administered by the Company. The Company does not fully fund the
liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a perind of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments, In respect
of certain employees, Provident Fund contributions are made to a Trust administered by the Company. The contributions made to the trust are

recognised as plan assets. Plan assets in the Provident fund trust are governed by local regulations, including limits on contributions in each class of
investments.

The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the
employee benefit obligations, with the objective that assets of the gratuity / provident fund obligations match the henefit payments as they fall due.
Investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not have a material impact on the overall level of assets.

A large portion of assets consists of government and cerporate bonds, although the Company also invests in equities, cash and mutual funds. The plan
asset mix is in compliance with the requirements of the regulations in case of Provident fund.

1. Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on Defined Contribution Plans:

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars For the year For the period
ended
March 31, 2022 March 4, 2020
to

March 31, 2021
Employer's contribution to Regional Provident Fund Office 1.64 0.79
Employer's contribution to Superannuation Fund 0.20 0.08
Employer's contribution to Employees’ State Insurance 0.42 0.21
Employer's contribution to Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995 4.85 2.24
Employer's conkribution to National Pensjon Scheme 0.75 0.32

tion to Provident and Other Funds and R&D Expenses (Refer Note 31 & 33)
ed above excludes charge to Statement of Profit and Loss on account of common control acquisition.
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IL. Disclosures for defined benefit plans based on actuarial valuation reports:

A. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

(Rs. in Crores)
Particulars (Funded}) (Funded)
Gratuity Provident Gratuity
Fund Provident Fund
Year Ended March 31, 2022 Period Ended March 31, 2021
Present Value of Defined Benefit Dbligation as at beginning of the period 51.28 12,99 S &
Interest Cost 3.33 5.23 1.41 0.23
Current Service Cost 4.27 10.15 1.02 4.72
Past Centributions from employer - -
Contributions frem plan participants - 16.81 - 8.14
Liability Transferred In for Employees Joined - 118.82 46,63 -
Benefits Paid from the fund (5.36) (0.88) " =
Return an Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income N 6.89
Actuarlal (Gains)/loss - due to change in Demographic Assumptions i = (0.39) »
Actuarial (Gains)/loss - due to change in Financial Assumptions (1.34) ~ 0.22 -
Actuarial (Gains)/loss - due to experience adjustments 0.62 - 2.39 (0.10)
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the end of the period 52.80 170.01 51.28 12,99
B. Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assats
(Rs. in Crores)
Particulars (Funded) (Funded)
Gratuity Provident Gratuity Provident Fund
Fund i
Year Ended March 31, 2022 Period Ended March 31, 2021
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at beginning of the period 46,98 12.99 - -
Interest Income 3.05 523 1.41 0.23
Contributions from employer - 26,96 - 12,86
Contributions from plan participants - =
Assets Transferred In for Employees joined - 118.82 46.63] 5
Assets Transferred out for Employees left = =
Benefits Paid fram the fund (5.36) (0.88) - -
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (D.33) 6.89 (1.06 (0.10)
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the period 44.34 170.01 46.98 12.99
C. A recognised in the Balance Sheet
(Rs. in Crores)
Particulars (Funded) (Funded)
Gratuity Provident Gratuity Provident Fund
Fund
Year Ended March 31, 2022 Period Ended March 31, 2021
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at the end of the period 52.80) 170.01 51.28 12.99
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at end of the period 44.34 170.01 46.98 12.99
Net Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (Refer Note 19) 8.46 - 4.30] -
Recognised under: ‘ !
Non Current provision (Refer Note 19) 8.46 » 4.30 =

The Pravident Fund has a surplus that is not recognised on the basls that future economic benefits are not available to the Company In the form of a reduction in
future contributions or a cash refund due to local regulations,

The Comparly has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plan (Gratuity), if any, with an immediate contribution or additional ona off cantributicns.

D. Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars (Funded) (Funded)
Gratuity Provident Gratuity Provident Fund
Fund
Year Ended March 31, 20322 Pariod Ended March 31, 2021
Current Service Cost 4,27 10,15] 1.02, 4.72
Net interest Cost 0.28 x #] |
Total Expenses / (Income) recognised In the Statement of Profit And Loss* 4.55 10.15 1.02 4.72

*Included in Salaries and Wages, Contribution to Provident and Other Funds, Gratuity Fund and R&D Expenses (Refer Note 31 and 33). The previous year however
does not Include charge on account of common control acquisition (refer note 513,
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E. Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income/(Losses) (OCI)

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars Gratuity Gratuity

Year Ended March 31, 2022 Period Ended March 31, 2021

Actuarfal (Gains)/Losses on Obligation for the Period - Due to changes in demegraphic
assumptions

- (0.39)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation for the Period - Due to changes in finandal
assumptions (1.34) 0.22
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation for the Period - Due to experience adjustment 0.62 2.39
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

0.33 1.06
Net (Income)/Loss Recognized in OCI (0.39) 3.28

F. Significant Actuarial Assumptions:

(%)
Particulars (Funded) (Funded)
Gratuity Provident Gratuity Provident Fund
Fund
Year Ended March 31, 2022 Period Ended March 31, 2021
Discount Rate (per annum) 6.84 5.84 6.48 6.49
Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets {per annum}) 6.84 3.10 6.49 6.49
N.A.
9.50% far the
next 1 year,
7.00% far the
next 2 years,
Salary escalation rate starting from the 2% mﬂ_?eﬁe;;: N.A
2nd year 6.00%
thereafter,
starting from the
4th year]

The expected rate of return en plan assets is based on market expectations at the closing of the period. The rate of return on long

-term government bonds is taken as
reference for this purpose.

In case of certain employees, the Provident Fund contribution Is made to a Trust administered by the Company. In terms of the Guidance note issued by the Institute

of Actuaries of India, the actuary has provided a valuation of Provident fund liability based on the assumptions listed above and determined that there is no shortfall at
the end of each reporting period,

G. Movements in the present value of net defined benefit obligation are as follows:

(Rs. in Crores)
Particulars Gratuit Gratuit
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Opening Net Liability 4.30 5
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 4.55 1.02
Expenses Recognized in OCI (0.39) 3.28
Recognized in the Balance Sheet 8.46 4.30
H. Category of Assets
(Rs. in Crores)
Gratuity Provident Gratuity Provident Fund
Particulars
Fund
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Government of Indla Assets (Central & State) 18.05 79.76 21.43 5.96
Public Sector Unit Bonds - = =
Corporate Bonds 14,74 64.67 17.82 4.07
Fixed Deposits under Special Deposit Schemes of Central Government* 723 - 2.81 =
Equity Shares of Listed Entities / Mutual Funds 4.32 6.25 4.92 0.55
Others* = 19.33 = 2.41
Total 44.34 170.01 46.98 12.99
* Except these, all the other investments are quoted.,
L. Other Details
Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No of Active Members 3,598 3,505
Per Month Salary For Active Members (Rs. in Crores) 11.20 10.07
Average Expected Future Service (Years) 7.00 7.00
Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) (Rs. in Crores) 52.81 51.28
Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) (Rs. in Crores) 11.20 8.57
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1. Cash Flow Projection: From the Fund
{Rs. in Crores)

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting Gratuity Gratuity
Estimated for year ended March| Estimated for period ended
31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1st Following Year 5.62 5.78
2nd Following Year 4.40 3.77
3rd Followlng Year 540 4.66
4th Following Year 6.11 5.03
Bh Following Year 5.55 5.72
Sum of Years 6 To 10 27.07 25.45

The Company’s Gratuity Plan is administered by an insurer and the Investments are made in various schemes of the trust. The Company funds the plan on a periodical
basis.

In case of certain employees, Provident fund is administered through an in-house trust, Periadic contributions to the trust are invested n various instruments
considering the return, maturity, safety, etc., within the overall ambit of the Provident Fund Trust Rules and investment pattern notified through the Ministry of Labour
investment guidelines for exempted provident funds.

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years.

K. Sensitivity Analysis
(Rs. in Crores)

Projected Benefit Obligation Gratuity Gratuity
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Impact of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (2.93) (3.38)
Impact of 1% Change in Rate of Discounting 3.29 3.35
Impact of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 3.27 3.36
Impact of -1% Change In Rate of Salary Increase {2.98) (3.00)
Impact of +1% Change In Rate of Emplayee Tumover 0.06 (0.05)
Impact of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.08) 0.04

The above sensitivity analysis are based on change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in
some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to slgnificant actuarial assumptions the same method

The estimates of future salary Increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply
and demand in the employment market.

The liabllity for Leave Encashment (Non - Funded) as at March 31,2022 is Rs. 32.04 Crores.(Previous year Rs. 30.39 crores)

The liability for Long term Service Awards (Mon - Funded) as at March 31,2022 |s Rs. 2,72 Crores.(Previous year Rs, 2.76 crores)
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38 Related Party Disclosures
I, List of related parties

A. Holding Company
Piramal Enterprises Limited (PEL)

B. Fellow Subsidiaries *

FHL Finlnvest Private Limited

Piramal Asser Management Private Limited
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Lim(ted
Piramal Holdings (Sulsse) 5A

C, Subsidiaries
The Subsidiary companias including step down subsidiaries ns an March 31, 2022

Proportion of Praportion of
Name ofth Company e | PR o | Gty o
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Piramal Critical Care ILalla, 5.P,A%* Italy 100% 100%
[Firamal Critical Care Deutschiand GmGH=* Germany 100%, 10C%
Firamal Critical Care Lim|ted == UK, 1003 100%
Piramal Healthcare {Canada) Limited ** [Piramal Healthcare, Canada) Canada 100% 100%:
|Firamal Critical Care B.V, ** Metherlands 100% 100%
Piramal Pharma Solutions B.V. ** Netherlands 100% 100%
Piramal Critical Care Ply. Ltd, == Australia 100% 100%
Piramal Healthcare UK Limited ** [Firamal Healthcare LK) LK. 100% 100%:
Piramal Healthcare Fension Trustees Limited** UK. 100% 10050
Pirarmal Critical Care South Africa (Pry) Ltd ¥= South Africa 100% 100%
Piramal Dutch Holdings WV, Netherlands 100% 100%
Piramal Healthcare Inc. @ [TE-Y 100% 100%
Wal Critical Care, Inc, == (PCLI) US.A 100% 100%
|Piramal Pharma Inc.** u.s.A 100% 100%
Piramal Pharma Solutions Inc, ** {Piramal Pharma Selutions] U.S.A 100% 100%

PEL Pharma Inc.@ U.S.A 100% 100%

PEL Healthcare LLC** (w.e.flune 26, 2020) U.S.A 100% 100,

Ash Stevens LLC ** (Ash Stevens) U.S.A 100% 100%
Convergence Chemicals Private Limited (Convergence] (w.e.l. February 25 2021) India 100% 100%
Hemmo Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (w.e.f June 22, 2021) India 100%; NA
\@ Pharma Japan GK (w.e.l November 21, 20211°% Japan 100% NaA

** held through Piramal Dutch Holdings M.V,
@ 10% held threugh PPL and 90% held throuah Biramal Dutch Holdings W.v.

C. Associates

Name of the Entity

Principal Place of

% voting power held
as at

% woting power
held as at
Marcnh 31, 2021

bisingus March 31, 2022
Allergan India Private Limited (Allargan) India 4%, 00%
Yapan Bio Private Limited (Yapan) (w.e.f. Decemnber 20, 2021) India

27 TR

49.00%
A

D. Other related parties *

Entitles Controlled by Key Management Personnel :
Piramal Corporate Services Private Limited (PCSL)

Piramal Glass Limited {PGL)

PGP Glass Private Limited (w.e.f. March 20, 2021)

Employes Benefit Trusts :
Piramal Pharma Lid Employees PF trust (FPFT)

E. Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Peter De Young
Ms. Nandinl Piramal
Mr, Vivek Valsaraj (w.e.m February @, 2022)

F. Non Executive/Independent Directors
Mr. 5. Ramadorai
Mr, Sridhar Gorthi (w.e.f March 30, 2022)
Mr. laira] Manahar Purandare
Mr. Neera] Bharadway
Mr. Peter Andrew Stevencsen (w.e.f March 30, 2022)
Mr. Rajesh Laddha (upto February 10, 2022}

" where there-are transactions during the current period or previous perlod
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(Ra.In Croras)
2, Detalls of transactions with related parties.
Dutails of Transactions Holding Campany Fullow Subsidiaries Subsidiarios Joint Venture Aasocistes | Othar Aelated Parifes Total
P 2077 031 2037 | So3i | Fo3 £ S I [ 5 2021 | 3J033 2091
Furchase of Goods a T —— . B s LT T— T S
- paL = = 2 : - 5 % " 5
=pccl - = - - 17.45 2160 . -
- Piramal Heakthcera Uk - - - . 0,49 {008, - -
- Hammo Pharmacaubicals Private Limited - - - * - - =
= Piramal Healthears, Canada - = = = 2 =
- PEL . 4960 c - - -
TOTAL R — ] - - - - = =
Sale of Goods
Allergan - B - - = - B6. 06 80,22 =
= Piramal Hepltheera U - - - - 17.52 15.73 . - - b = -
- PCCl - = - - 40,00 103,14 & - * :
- Piramal Healtheare, Cnnada - - . - 16,23 - - = z
- Piramal Critieal Care Limited - - - - 190 a z . 5 2 =
- Piramal Critical Care BY = - ~ * 17.60 - - - - - =
- Ash Stevens - - - - 0.5 nAa5 - = -3 - =
|- PEL 928 55 373.27 - - - - - - = e E A
TOTAL 925 37977 = - 130.47 1530 = - _Ae.08 60,33 = -
Renduring of Services
- Firamal Haakheare UK 5 - = - 2 3218 = = . L s . = 3218
= PHL Fininvast . 5 o . - £ % = i 5 % D& i
- Plramal Assat Man sgement Brivate Limited - - 013 - - - - 13 -
Pirnmal Capital & Housing Financs Lim fed = - 047 . B - - = - - 5 = 6,17
- PGP Glass Privats Limited - . = - . - £ = = 0.5 - 0.0% =
- Pirama| Healthoere, Canads : - . : = - d 2 A 5 337
[- Ash Stavans - = - - .ot . - - - - 500 | 0.0] |
TOTAL - - BTN % 1] - = 0 = .65 - N 33.19
Dividend Recelved
= pliergan - - - - 9. 134,54 - a0 65 124 84
raaeran - - - ; - : : : ria — S 7
Bividond Paid
- Piramai E ikas Limited J9.54 - N 5 - L - = = 30 0y =
ﬁi R T - - - = 0 = = - - - - 3064 —
I Incomea
- Pirama| Hesithcare Uk - - - - .51 0.47 - - - 0.51 047
- Copvergonce - . - - .08 - - - - 0.0
- Biramal Critieal Cara Limited - - E - 027 0.01 = = 0.27 0.01
YOTAL = = = - 0.87 [X - - - - = = 0.67 7,44 |
Receiving of Services
- Firamal Pharma i, : . o . - 5,95 -
= Pirernal Healthenra U - - - 12.50 13.73 -
= Hemifio Fharmacauticals Private Limited - = = [ =} 0.4 =
= Piramal Critical Care Inc - - - = 129 I = =
- Asly Stevens ~ - - - a1 25.99
- ar 24.90 - - = -
1 24.90 = - [Tk 4587 [
Detalls of Transactions Helding company Fellow subsl B Joint Venbure
3033 2021 3033 2021 033 2021 7077 | 3021 |
Royalty Expense
- PESL - - 3 . < - - - - t7.07 5.00 17.07 5.08
| TOTAL = = - - - - = - - - _i7.67 | 5.0 17.07 5.00
Rent Income
= PHL Fininvast - - 2,53 1,55 - - - 253 155
= Firamal fsset Manag=ment Private Limited l= - = 0.26 = = = = 0.26 =
TOTAL A — N - - 3.79 155 - - - - - - - - 275 155
Relmbursemant of expenses pald
= PEL BL.03| 43.70 - = = : = 2 L = =
JOTAL = B1.03 4370 - - = ~ - - = - = =
Purchasa of Intangibia
- Piramal Holdings {Suissa) 54 - - 062 - - - = = = . - 062 =
T I - = B.63 : = r) = = = g - = .85 -
Detalls of Transactions Holding company Fellow aubsidiaries Subsidiaries Joink Venture Associatas Other Relatod Parties Tolal
2022 2021 2022 2021 022 2021 2021 2021 2022 2021 anzz 2021 2022 021 |
Contribution to Funds
~PRET x = g : 5 - - - - - 25.5% - 26,95 -
TOTAL = - = T G - = T - - 3608 = 26.96 ===
Sale of Assels
- Hemmo Pharmacausicals Private Limitad - - - - 1.41 < 1.41
i e - = - - __ia1 - - - - - - 141
Finance granted /{reaayments) - Net (including loans
and Equity contribution / Investments tn cash orin
Kind
- Canverqenes i - ~ - 325 B - - - 17.25) [1.75)
= Firamal Dutch Haldings N.Y. - . - 5EB.23 - = = s 70.94 598 23
- Hammo Pharmacauticals Private Limited " : = 12 i = Z = 2006 z
FEL Pharma [nc, = = -, 3 5 Lo = * d1.41 .
TAL = - - - - i76.10 1.48 - - = = =—F 176.10 596,43
Details of Transactions Haolding company Fellow subsidiaries Subsidiaries Jolnt Venture Associates Other Ralated Parties Total
= 3033 | 3634 203% 2021 _ 7027 | apzi | o3z 3031 2022 2027 2021
Interest Paid on Loans
- PEL [ - 0.07 : = < 3 : - = = - = a.07
[ - 6,07 - - s - - = 3 = = 2 13 0.07 ]
GEtails of Transactions 3 Holding eompany Fellow subsidiaries Subsidiaries Joint Venture Assoclates Other Ralated Partios Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2023 2021 2022 2021
Interest Recelved on Loans/Investmants
- Converganee - - - . 174 0.17 - 0.60 - - - - 174 0.77
- Flrarmal Dutch Holdings pLY, = - - - 24,48 17.5% » = - = * - 24,66 17.59
= PEL Pharma Tnc = < s - 06 - 3 = - = = ?.'JE =
2mma Pharmaeeuticals Private Limitzd - - - - 136 - - E - = = = 36 | -
AL = - - - - 27.53 17,78 E L - - - - 77.92 jls.sl

On Octohar 04, 2021, the Company has issusd 141,910,732 equlty shares as bonus shares to framal Enterprises Limited,

Interast rates charged to subskionies are mede ak markst rstas comperable with prevaking ratés in the mspective geagran ks, Al othar transoetions were mads o) normal cammercial tarms end conditians and ot markst rates,
= Amaunk below rounding eff norms adopted by Company
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Compansalion of ey managorial parsonnel
“The remunerakion af divectors and ather meinbers ef bey manamerinl persorns hering tha paried was e fulloes:

Rs. In erores
[Paniculars 2037
rt-ter iy B = LET T
I il Ceriits 73 NI
Eher Tutg-tevim bainis = T =
uihir b Tian ewee i Ll [} (X
X i
Paymients made to the discns and oth e mombeis ol ey rmanagenal persannel are approved by Boscd of Dirarors.
3, Balonces of related parthas,
Rs. In Croros
(S e i Holding compamy | Fatiow subsldinries Subsicineles Saint Ventars J—— ihe ralated Pariios Total
= 30 FEY 3037 | soui 3033 [ aan L. R N T S T S8 | % T o - S T
Lonn 1o raiat wwclired (a1 amoriaed coe ShEro—) - 1 1 Ty
- Firaral Dusch mmm Il L E 2 . M7an BOE.54 E . - - . T 804,99
= PEL Fharma In 3 L33 - E = . - VLI
< Hesmwig mnm.uu:m-m Lariterd = i 3 ETETY . = g = 2080 =
- Conval : - - 950 1147 - - - . 5 50 1747
Othar Mwh lrom ruIM party
= Piramad Health - = 0404 LE ] - - - wen 036
- Pl Healtheare |1r 3 # = : Ler - - . . % . 147
« FHL n et Private Limited . 039 < . s - 0.
- sa ManAGaTen: Frivates L . - 043 . E g . Z - 43 :
H\mlwl Capitod & Hitowng Finarce imited , w20 : u 3 . 3 . i E
Pmmm ebimte Limad G 3 & 2 Z - : 0,05 - 0.06 .
1167 1 0 ¥ s 5 i Z
"N.'-l'll_ SR 1y r L) oy T = = = T =
[ —
Trade Rscalvmbles
ramal - 26,57 6,51 - = -
3 = - z B.a5 £.55 - z - #
- Piramal Celteal Cape Lined v : : ; 3309 x = 5
Fremal Crftical Cas By - : oy 2208 = -
- - - 63 135 - . -
3L 21840 o L = = . z =
4 2 3 £ F ¥ s 1348
——— - G L — T g £ Lt - - -
Advancs to Vandar
- PLE Ing, : - 380 - . £ 380
- - - = T .80 = - - - - - - _ Sao
Trada Fayabis
# Plraml Fhanma bn = * - 18 LA T - . - . o1 0.7
Perarrl Hml!lruUK - . £ 5,55 1 = E - = 555 L
sl - - - a8 1212 . . . - 1243 (B3
oo : = s ; : = L - .10 .
Pimmal Crlbical Care By - . oin - 2 - U8
- PGL = : i . . 1008 - 10,00
- Firamal P s S Ine F: 2 Z P .04 : . s o4
« Pitamad Heaithcars Inc. E : - [ . - . - L ooz E:
- PEL phara Inc. - . . : 3 : .
- PEL ETET 128,34 x . - i : = :
- A Shmvena - E - 2 i . '
e s | - _ - -
LIOTAL TEAL EENE
Gusrarine Commission Recgivabla
- Piramal Hgakheare 1K - - - 30 .31 = . = o L1
- Convargence : . : mal . . = : ol
- Ararmal Crives! Care Ll - : .t 17| 061
TOTAL = - = = D - < = - . S| X
Contingent Liablities
Gunrantiens Qutstanding "
Firemal Hanlthcara LK - - . 434 70 4386 = + - 45459 4inn8
|- Plimmat Criticat Care Lirnitea - 420 b - = . Stz0] -
TOTAL - - - - 500,09 430 69 - - - - - - 508 99
Considaration Payabis an areount of Business Transte
{rafar nota 18 and nate 52)
- PEL . - - SU2.0
= ==t = =t =t = = = - : = - :ﬁl

* Amant below miding off norms adopted by Corpany
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39 1n accordance with Ind A4S 108 'Operating Segments’, segmant In

Annual Report and therefors, no separate disclosure an segment information is given in these financial statements,

Plant & Equipment, Brands and Trademarks, and C
40 against secured borrowings as at March 31, 2022,

formation has been given in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, which are presented in tha same

urrent Assets are mortgaged/hypothecated to the extent of Rs. 1,250.00 Crores (As on March 31, 2021 Rs. 90.02

(Rs. in Crores)

For the year
41
Particulars For the year ended ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Misceil, Ex in Note 33 includes Audi R ation in respect of:
A) Statutory Auditors:
a) Audit Fees 0.80 Q.45
b} Other Services 0.57 *
C) Out of Pockat Expanses = 0.02
* Amounts are below the rounding off norm adoptad by the Company.
42 Disclosures as required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {"MSMED Act") are as under;
(Rs. in Crores)
As at As at
|Pa 1!
et March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Principal amount outstanding to suppliers registered under the MSMED act and remalning unpaid as at periad end 47.65 2661
Interest due to suppliers reglstered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at period end, 0.04 16.09
Frincipal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyand the appointed day
during the period. 157.47 180.57
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appainted day during the period. - -
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registersd under the MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the period. - =
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registerad under MSMED Act, for Payments already made 1.62 1,38
The amount of Interest accried and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 5.26 8.72

The above information regardi
Company.

ng Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determinad ta the extent such parties have besn identified on the basis of Infarmation available with tha

43 The Company has advanced loans to its subsidlary companies.

Principal amaunts outsanding

as at the period end were:

{Rs. in Crores)
Z As at As at

Shimiavy companies March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Piramal Dutch Holdings N.V. {revaluad at closing foreign exchange rate) 684,64 591.87
Convergence Chemicals Private Limited 5.50 16.75
Hemma Pharmaceuticals Private Limited 20.99 -
PEL Pharma Inc (revalued at closing foreign exchanga rate) 90.96 -
The maximum amounts due during tha perled wara: (Rs. in Crores)

|Subsidiary Companies For the year ended| For the period
March 04,2020
to
31/03/2032 | rien A, soud
Piramal Dutch Holdings N.V. 584.64 558.23
Convergence Chemicals Private Limited 16.75 16.75
Hemmo Pharmaceuticals Private Lirmited 35.00 =
PEL Pharma Inc 01.41 =

44 Earnings Per Share (EPS) - EFS is calculated by dividing the prafily {loss) attributable to the equity shareholdars by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

peried, The earnings and weighted average 0 basic and diluted earnings per equity share ara as follows.

numbers of equity shares used in calculatin

For th eriod
Particulars For the year ended i el
31/03/2022 04/03/2020
to
31/03/2021
1. Profit/ (Loss) after tax (Rs. in Crores) 343.05 571.50
2. Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for calculating Basic EFS (nos.) 1,17,88,85,044 |, 62,76,19 257
3. Total Welghted Average Number of Equity Shares for calculating Diluted EPS (nos.) 1.17,88 85 04« 62,76,19,257
4. Earnings Per Share - Basic atlributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs.) {1/2) 2.91 9.11
5. Earnings Per Share - Diluted attribulable (o Equity Shareholders (Rs.) 2.91 9,11
6. Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

17,76,65,757 equity shares were issued as honus shares on October 04, 2021

to the exisling shareholders in the ratio 5.674-1 and bonu

total weighted average number of equity shares ta determine the basic and dilutad earnings per share as per INDAS 33,
EPS for pravious peried has been restated on account of fssuance of banus shares issued in current year In accordance with TND AS 33.

5 shares have been considered far computation of

Crores) as a security
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45 (i) Amounts racognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets

Movement during year ended March 31, 2022 (Rs. in crores)

Category of Asset Opening as on Additions Deductions Depreciation for | Closing as on
April 1, 2021 | during 2021-22 during 2021-22 | the year ended | March 31, 2022
h 31,2022

Building 8.18 3.90 0.93 2.59 8.56

Leasehold Land 5.27 - - 0.07 5.20

Total 13.45 3.90 I_J__._93 2.66 13.76

Lease liabilities as on March 31, 2022 9.85

Right-of-use assets

Movement during year ended March 31, 2021 (Rs. in crores)
Category of Asset Balance Additions Deductions Depreciation for | Closing as on

acquired as at
March 04, 2020

during period
March 04, 2020
To
March 31, 2021

during period

March 04, 2020
To

March 31, 2021

the period
March 04, 2020
To
March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021

Building 0.98 B8.26 8 1.06 8.18
Leasehold Land 5.20 0.14 - 0.07 527
Total 6.18 B.40 - 1.13 13.45
Lease liabilities as on March 31, 2021 9.06

(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases

(Rs. in crores)

Particulars For the year For the period
ended ended

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Included in finance cost) 0.90 0.42

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in Other Expenses) 9.61 11.00

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2021 is 8.91%.

The bifurcation below provides details re

undiscounted basis;

garding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 on an

(Rs. in crores

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
1 year 3.09 2,58
1-3 years 6.02 5.06
3-5 years 2.41 3.26
More than 5 years 0.19 H
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46 Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that It will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the eptimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detalled in
note 17 & 21 offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the hasis of annual as well as long term operating plans and other strategic

investment plans. The funding requirements are met through non convertible debt securities or other long-term / short-term borrowings, The

Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to e

Company.

The capital components of the Company are as given below:

quity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the

(Rs. in Crores)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Equity 5,067.34 4,100.62
Total Equity 5,067.34 4,100.62
Borrowings - Non Current 447.61 7
Borrowings - Current 653.92 165.20
Total Debt 1,101.53 165.20
Cash & Cash equivalents (B4.65) (146.73)
Net Debt 1,016.88 18.47
Debt/Equity Ratio 0.20 0.00

The terms of the secured borrowings contain certain financial covenants primarily requiring the Company to maintain certain financial ratios like
Consolidated Net Debt to Consolidated Net Worth, Consolidated Net Debt to Consolidated EBITDA, Debt Service Coverage Ratio at Standalone
level, Security Cover ratio. The Company is broadly in compliance with the said covenants.

47 Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit rick.
The Company has an independent and dedicated Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system to identify, manage and mitigate business risks.
The Senior Management along with a centralized treasury manages the liquidity and interest rate risk on the balance sheet.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity
the financial statements

is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of hedge accounting in

Risk Exposure arising Management
from
Liguidity risk Borrawings and|The Senior Management along with centralized treasury

other |lzbilities

deliberates on the static liquidity gap statement, future asset|
growth plans, tenor of assets, market liquidity and pricing of
various sources of funds. It decides on the optimal funding
mix taking into consideration the asset strategy and a focus on
diversifying sources of funds.

Market risk - Interest rate

Long-term
borrowings
variable rates

at

The Senior Management along with centralized treasury
reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of floating
and fixed rate assets and liabilities,

Market risk - Securities price risks

Equity Investment

The Company continue to effectively evaluate various risks
involved in underlying assets, before and after making any
such strategic investments.

Market risk - Foreign exchange

Transactions
denominated
forelgn currency

in

The centralised treasury function aggregates the foreign
exchange exposure and takes measures to hedge the exposure
based on prevalent macroeconomic conditions,

Market risk - Interest rate

Short-term
borrowings
variable rates

at

The Senior Management along with centralized treasury
reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of floating
and fixed rate assets and liabilities.

Credit risk

Trade receivables,
investments  and
loans to related
parties

The Senlor Management assess the recoverability of
investments and loans agiven to related partias on periodic
basis and considered these balances good and fully
recoverable,

Refer note-2 for trade receivables
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Risk Exposure arising Management
from
Credit risk Cash  and cash|Diversification of bank deposits, credit limits and letters of

equivalents, trade|credit
recejivables,
derlvative financial|Each investment in financial services is assessed by the

instruments, investment team as well as independent risk team on the risk-
financial assets|return framework. The combined analysis of these teams Is
measured at|presented to the Investment Committee for investment

amortised cost. decision. The risk is being partly mitigated by setting up a
concentration risk framework, which Incentivises business
units to diversify portfolio across counterparties, sectors and
geographies.

a. Liguidi

Liquidity Risk refers to insufficiency of funds to meet the financial obligations. Liquidity Risk Management implies maintenance of sufficient cash
and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines to meet obligations when due,

The Senior Management along with centralized treasury is responsible for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and
long-term funding and liguidity management requirements, The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by assessing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
The Company has access to undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of each reporting period, as detailed below:
The Company has the following undrawn credit lines available as at the end of the reporting periad.

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Undrawn credit lines 200,13 452.94
200.13 452.94

Note: This includes Non-Convertible Debentures, Inter Corporate Deposits and Commercial Papers where only credit rating has been obtained
and which can be issued, If required, within a short period of time,

The following table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The table have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
rate applicable as of reporting period ends respectively has been considered.

(Rs. in Crores)

Maturities of Financial Liabilities March 31, 2022
Upto 1 year 1to 3 years 3 to 5 years | 5 years & above
Borrowings 693.34 483,20 = -
Trade Payables 615.20 - - -
Lease liability 3.09 6.02 241 0.19
Other Financial Liabilities 2.25 - ™ =
1,313.88 489.22 2.41 0.19
(Rs. in Crores)
Maturities of Financial Liabilities March 31, 2021
Upto 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years | 5 years & above
Borrowings 165,44 = = =
Trade Payables 584,12 = = =
Lease liability 258 5.06 326 -
Other Financial Liabilities 633.52 - = -
1,385.66 5.06 3.26 -
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The foliowing table details the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be sarned an those assets, The Inclusion of information on
non-derivative financial assets is necessary In order to understand the Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity Is managed on a
net asset and liability basis. Hence, maturities of tha relevant assets have been considered below,

(Rs. in Crores)

Maturities of Financial Assets March 31, 2022
Upto 1 year 1to 3 years 3to5years 5 years & above
Loans to related parties 81.58 B15.34 - "
Trade Receivables 974.92 = = .
1,056.50 815.34 - £
(Rs. in Crores)
Maturities of Financial Assets March 31, 2021
Upto 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years 5 years & above
Loans to related parties 42.55 624,17 5.34 #
Trade Receivables 864.28 i s ”
906.93 624.17 534 -

In assessing whether the going concern assumption is appropriate, the Company has considered a range of factors relating to current and
expected profitability, debt repayment schadule and potential sources of replacement financing. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis
on such factors considered and based on current indicators of future economic conditions; there is a reasonable expectation that the Company
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Because of the uncertainties resulting from COVID-19,
the impact of this pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company
will continue to monitor any changes to the future economic conditions,

The balances disclosed in the table above are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as on March 31, 2022.

Interest Rate Risk Management
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as it has assats and liabilities based on floating interest rates as well. Senior Management along
with centralised treasury assess the interest rate risk run by it and provide appropriate guidelines ta the treasury to manage the risk. The Senior
Management along with centralised treasury reviews the interest rate risk on periodic basis and decides on the asset profile and the appropriate
funding mix. The Senior Management along with centralised treasury reviews the interest rate gap statement and the interest rate sensitivity
analysis,
The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to the interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period is mentioned below:
(Rs. in Crares)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021/
Variable rate borrowings B90.00 -
Fixed rate borrowings 200.00 90.20

1,090.00 50.20

The sensitivity analysis below have been determinad based on the exposure to interest rates for liabilities at the end of the reporting period. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year and the rates are reset as per the applicable reset dates. The basls risk between various benchmarks used to
reset the floating rate liabilities has been considered to be insignificant.

If interest rates related to borrowings had bean 100 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's Profit
before tax for the year ended/QOther Equity {pre-tax) as on March 31, 2022 would decrease/increase by Rs 8.90 Crores for total borrowings
(Previous year Nil) . This is attributable to the Company's exposure to borrowings at floating interest rates,

If interest rates related to loans given had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's Profit
before tax for the year ended/Other Equity (pre-tax)

as on March 31, 2022 would increase/decrease by Rs.B.06 Crores (Previous year Rs. 6.09 Crores). This is attributable to the Company's
exposure to lendings at floating interest rates,
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c. Foreign Currency Risk Management

The Company is exposed to Currency Risk arising from its trade exposures and Capital receipt / payments denominated, in other than the Functional Currency. The

Company has a detailed policy which includes setting of the recognition parameters, benchmark targets,
lays down the checks and controls to ensure the effectiveness of the treasury function.
g the risks for each category of exposures (e.g. for exports , for imports, for loans, etc.). The centralised treasury

The Company has dafined sty ies for add

the boundaries within which the treasury has to perform and also

function aggregates the foreign exchange exposure and takes prudent measures to hedge the exposure based on prevalent macro-ecanomic conditions,

a) Derivatives outstanding as at the reporting date

Firm commitment and highly probable forecast transaction

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

FC in Millions Rs. in Crores FC in Millions Rs. in Crores
Forward contracts to sell USD / INR 130.00 | 1,007.25 113.00 | 84B.02

b) Particulars of foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Currencies Trade receivables Trade receivables

FC in Millions Rs. in Crores FC in Millions Rs. In Crores
AUD 0.43 2.43 0.03 0.14
CAD 7.30 44,15 7.45 43.24
PR 4.58 38.60 6.66 57.13
GBP 0.78 .71 0.53 5.39
|SGD 0.08 043 0.15 0.80
(usD 53.78 407.66 63.11 461.41

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Trade payables/{advance to
Currencies supplier) Trade payables

FC in Millions Rs. in Crores FC in Millions Rs. in Crores
AUD » 0.02 g 0.01
CAD = [0.01) * 0.03
CHF {0.01) (0.07) 0.03 0.20
EUR 0.13 1.12 1.10 9.42
GBP 0.20 1.94 0.49 4,92
THB 0.43 0.10 0.77 0.18
SEK D.03 0.02 0.03 0.02
usp 13.56 102.75 24.25 177.27
NZD 0.03 * i *
Py 4.16 0.26 0.23 0.02
SGDh * * * *
AED 0.07 0.14 0.04 0.08

* Amounts are below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Currencies Loan from Banks Loan from Banks
FC in Millions Rs. in Crores FC in Millions | Rs. In Crores
USD B - 8.23 | 60.20
T As at March 31, 2022
Ciivaicies Loan & Interest Receivable from| Current Account Balances Receivable
Related Parties /(Payable)
FC in Millions Rs. in Crores FC in Millions Rs. in Crores
usp 103.02 780.47 0.02 0.14
GBP 2.00 19.92 = -
As at March 31, 2021
c % Loan & Interest Receivable from| Current Account Balances Receivable
NETCNcIes Related Partias /(Fayable)
FC in Millions Rs. in Crores FC in Millions Rs, in Crores
uspb 83.01 606.94 0.24 1.75
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<) Sensitivity Analysis:

Of the above, the Company is mainly exposed to USD,

the exchange rates of these currencies against INR,

GBP & EUR. Hence the following table analyses the Company's Sensitivity to a 59 increase and a 5% decrease in

Particulars For the period ended March 31, 2022
Impact on Profit or
Loss before
.| Total Liabilities Change in
Currencies Increase /Decrease Tuta_i Asse.‘ts " in FC (In exchange rate tax/Other Bgqulty
FC (in Millions) Millians) (in Rs. ) (pre-tax) for the
I period
(in Rs. Crores)
uso Increase by 5%** 156.80 13.56 3.79 54.29
Usp Decrease by 5%** 156.80 13.56 (3.79) (54.29)
GBP Increase by S%** 2,78 0.20 4.97 1.28
GBP Decrease by 5%*= 2.78 0.20 (4.97) {1.28)
EUR Increase by 5%** 4.58 0.13 4.21 1.87
EUR Decrease by 5%** 4.58 0.13 (4.21) {1.87)
Particulars For the period ended March 31, 2021
Impact on Profit or
o Loss before
Total Liabilities Change in :
Currencles Increase /Decrease Tota) ‘“S_SE“ in in FC (In exchange rate fax, Othier Equity
FC (in Millions) o (pre-tax) for the
Millions) (inRs. )
period
(in Rs. Crores)
usp Increase by 5%** 146.36 32.48 3.66 41.63
uso Decrease hy 5%+ 146.36 32.48 {3.66) (41.63)
GBP Increase by 5%** 0.53 0.49 5.04 0.02
GRP Decrease by 5%** 0.53 0.49 (5.04) (0.02)
EUR Increase by 5%*= 6.66 1,10 4.29 2.38
EUR Decrease by 5%** 6.66 1.10 (4.29) (2.38)

** Holding all the other variables constant
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d. Accounting for cash flow hedge

The olijective of hedge accounting |5 to reprasent, in the Company’s financial statements, the effect of the Company’s use of financial instruments to manage exposures arising from particular
risks that could affect profit or loss, As part of its risk trategy, the Ci y makes use of financial derivative instruments, such as foreign currency range forwards and forward
exchange contracts for hedging the risk arising an account of highly prebable fareign currency ferscast sales,

For derivative contracts designated as hedge, the Company documents, at inception, the economic relationship between the hedging instrument and tha hedged item, the hadae ratia, the risk
management objective for undertaking the hedge and the methods used (o assess the hedge effectiveness, The derivative contracts have been taken to hedge foreign currency fluctuations risk
arising on account of highly probable fareign currency forecast sales,

The Company applies cash flow hedge ta hedge the variability arising out of fareign exchange currency fluctuations on account of highly probable forecast sales. Such contracts are generally
designated as cash flow hedgas,

The Company determines the ewistence of an economic relationship between the hedging instrurnent and hedged item based on the currency, amount and timing of their respective cash flows.
The forward exchange forward contracts are denominated In the same currency as the highly probable future sales, therefare the hedge ratio is 1:1, Further, the entity has excluded the
foreign currency basis spread and takes such excluded slemeant through the income statement, Accordingly, the Company designates only the spot rate in the hedging relationship,

The Company has a Buard approved policy, adopted at group level on assessment, measurement and monitoring of hedge effectivenass which provides a guldefine for the evaluation of hedge
effectiveness, treatment and monitaring of the hedge effective position fram an accounting and risk monitoring perspective. Hadge effectiveness (s ascertained at the time of inception of the
hedge and pariodically thereafter. The Company assesses hedge effectiveness on prospective basis, The prospective hedge effectivenass test is a forward Inoking evaluation of whether or not

the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedging position are expactsd ta be highly effective in offsetting the changes In the fair value ar cash flows of the hedged position cver the
term of the relationship,

Hedge effectiveness is assessed through the application of dollar offset method and designation of spot rate as the hedaing instrument, The excluded portion of the forelgn currency basts
spread s taken directly through Income statement.

The table below enumerates the Company's hedging strategy, typical composition of the Company's hedge partfolia, the instruments used to hedge risk exposures and the type of hedging
ralationship for the period ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

Sr Ne Type of risk/ hedge position Hedged item Description of Hedging Description of hedging instrument Type of
hedging instrument hedging
strategy relationship

1 Foreign Currency hedge Highly probable Foreign Highly probable Forward contracts are contractual agreements to buy or seﬁ‘Cash flow
forecast sales CUrreRcy forecast sales & specified financial instrument at a specific price and date in hedge
denominated the future, These are customized contracts transacted in the
highly probable over-the-counter market, Further, the foreign currency basis
forecast sales is spread s separated and accounted for at FVTPL, Accordingly,
converted into only the spot rate has been designated in the hedging
functicnal relationship.
CUPFENCY Using
a forward
coalract

The tables below provide detaiis of the derivatives that have bean designated as cash flaw hedges for the perlods presented:

As at March 31, 2022 (Rs. In Crores)
Ineffectiven| HN€ item in Amount Line item in
Derivative Darivative Change in fair ey profit or loss Contracts reclassified | profit or loss
= Financial Financial value for the that includes | from cash | affected by
prncms] * | Inst - |mnstr -|period recognized li-:w’,“ﬂt“ n: hedge ":::t:: ;:’Lm flow hedging the
Agsats Liabilities in OCI Ineffactive- reserve to | reclassificati
loss
ness profit or loss |
Foreign wxchange 13.00 (USD) 6.26 - 0.53 - | Not applicable = 5.85 | Reverue
forward contracts
As at March 31, 2021 {Rs. In Crores)
Line item in Amount Line itam in
Derivative Derivative Change in fair lnefr::iven profit or loss Contracts reclassified |profit or loss
Notianal omnc Financial Financia value for the recognized that includes novated from|  [fom cash | affected by
Instr = |Instr nts - | period recognized S en ok hedge PEL to ppL | 10W hedging the
Assets Liabilities in OCI Toss ineffectiva- reserve to | reclassificati
ness profit or loss on
LFl‘.\r\algl‘r exchange 11.30 (UsSD) 16.36 - 10.47 5 Not applicable (4,307 (0,44} | Revenue
forward contracts

The table below prevides a profile of the timing of the national amounts of the Company's hedaing instruments (based on resldual tenor) along with the average prics or rate as applicable by
risk calegory:

{Rs. In Crores)
As at March 31, 2022

Less than 1
year

Total 1-5 years | Over5 years

Foreign currency risk:
Forward exchange contracts
Iﬁv&rage INR:USD forward contract rate

13.00 (USD)|  13.00 (USE) 2 x

71.87 77.87 = =
(Rs. In Crores)
As at March 31, 2021
Less than 1
Total yean 1-5 years |OverS years

Foreign currency risk:

|Forward exchange contracts
Average INR:USD forward contract rate

11.30 (USD)|  11.30 (UsSD) - =
711 77.11 =
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[iii) The following table provides a reconciliation by risk categary of the components of equity and analysis of OCI items q frem hedge accounting: {Rs. In Crores)
Movement in Cash flow hedge reserve for the period ended 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gain/(Loss) Gain/(Loss)
Opening Balance 5.73 -
ffective portion of changes in fair value:
Forelgn exchange forward contracts 071 13.77
Tax @n Movertients. on reserves durlng the period (0.18) (3.30)
Cantracts novated from Plramal Enterprises Limited - {5:53)
Tax on above durlng the periog - 1.23
Amount reclassified to profit or loss:
Forelgn exchange forward contracts 7.95 (0.59)
Tax on movements on reserves during the perind {2.00) 0.15
=
Closing balance as at the end of the period 12.21 5,73
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48 The Company conducts research and development to find new sustainable chemical routes for pharmaceutical products. The Company is undertaking
development activities for Oral Solids and Sterile Injectables, apart from other Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API).

The Company has research and development centers in Mumbai, Ennore and Ahmedabad.

Details of additions to Property Plant & Equipments, Intangibles under Development and Revenue Expenditure for Department
Research {DSIR) Recognised research and development facilities / division of the Company at Mumbai,

follows:

of Scientific & Industrial

Ennore and Ahmedabad for the year are as

Description

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Revenue Expenditure* 138.26 102.99
TOTAL 138.26 102.99
Capital Expenditure, Net

Additions to Property Plant & Equipment 7.00 11.51
Additions to Intangibles under Development 8.74 6.91
TOTAL 15.74 18.42

*The amount included in Note 33 under R&D Ex
locations.

penses (net) does not include Rs. 86.82 crores. (Previcus Year Rs.79.30 crores) relating to Ahmedabad
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49 Income taxes relating to operations

a) Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

{Rs.in Crores)

For tha year ended For the period
March 31, 2022 04/03/2020
Particulars to
31/03/2021
Current fax :
In respect of the current period 96.34 104.98
96.34 104.28
Deferred tax :
In respect of tha current period (15.16) 10.30
(15.16 10.30
Total tax expense recognised B81.18 115.28
b) Tax ( W S recog in other compr income
{Rs. in Crores)
Year ended For the period
March 31, 2022 04/03/2020
Particulars to
31/03/2021
Current tax :
Deferred tax :
Fair value Remeasurament of bedging Instruments entered Into for cash flow hedges {2.18) {1.93)
Remeasuremant of defined benefit obligation {0.10) 0.82
Total Lax expense recognised (2.28) (1.11)

c) Deferred tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabllities) presented in the separate statement of financial position;

(Rs. in Crores)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Deferred tax assels 11.29 1.13
Defarred tax liabilities (168.83) (171.55)
(157.54) (170.42)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized far the future tax consegquences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assels are recognized to the extent that It Is probable that future taxable income will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences could be utilized.

d) Movement of Deferred Tax during the year ended March 31, 2022

(&. in Crores}

Particulars Opening Bal ised in gnised in other Closing
statement of profit comprehensive balance
and loss income
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables 0.24 0.75 - 0.99
Fair value measurement of derivative contracts (4.30) 4,72 {2.18) {1.76)
Recognition of lease rent expanse 0.07 0.07 - .14
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets {167.25) 0.76 - (165.49)
Debt EIR Impack - (0.58) - (0.58)
Expenses that are allowad on payment basis - 9.44 - .44
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 0.82 = (0.10) 0.72
Total (170.42) 15.16 (2.28] {157.54)

Movement of Deferred Tax during the period March 04, 2020 to March 31, 2021

’i’artlcula rs

Balance acquired
as at March 04,

Recognised In
statement of profit

Recognised in other

{Rs. in Cror:
Closing
comprehensive balance

2020 under and loss income

common control

(refer note 51)
Deferred tax (liahilities)/assets in relation to:
Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables o 0.24 It 0.24
Fair value measurement of derivalive contracts - {2.37) {1.93) (4.30)
Recognition of lease rent expense - 0.07 = 0.07
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibla Assats (152.01) (8.24) - (167.25)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation = = D.82 0.82
Total (159.01 {10.30) (1.11) (170.42)
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ing profit as foll

(Rs. in Crores)

e) The income tax expense for the period can be reconciled to the

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the period
March 04, 2020
to
March 31, 2021

Profit before tax 424.23 6B6.78
Prafit recognised on account of common control acquisition (refer note 51) * 282.02
Profit before tax 424.23 404.76
tax exp d at 25.17% 106.78 101.88
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profic 5.31 11.37
Effect of Incomes which are exempt from tax (22.82) =
Others {8.09) 2.03
Tncome fax expense recognised In statement of profit and loss B81.18 115.28




PIRAMAL PHARMA LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

50 Fair Value Measurement

a) Financial Instruments by category (net of ECL provision) :

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Invastments 37.01 + - -
Loans = 833.97 = £24.41
Cagh B Bank Palances - 90.27 152.35
Trade Receivables * 947.65 5 B39.75
Other Financial Assets 6.26 35.37 16.36 94.67
43.27 1,912.26 16.36 1,711.18
Financial liabllities
Borrowlngs 1,101.53 - 165.20
Trade Payables = 615.20 - 584.12
Other Financial Liabiilties - 163.34 - 642.58
= 1,880.07 - 1,391.90

b)

The Company considers that carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities disclosed above approximate thelir fair values.

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are {a} racognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at
amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed In tha financial statements. Ta provide an indication about the reliability of the Inputs used in derermining falr value, the group has
ctlassified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the tabis,

{Rs, in Crores)

March 21, 2022
Financlal Asssts Notes Carrying Value] _ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Measured at FVTPL - Recurring Fair Value Measurements
Investments
Investment in Mutual Funds 37.01 37.01 - = 37.01
Other Financial Assets
Derivative Financial Assats i 6.26 - 6.26 - 6.26
(Rs. in Crores)
March 31, 2022
Flanctel Linkie; Notes Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Measured at Amortised Cost for which fair values are disclosed
Borrowings i 1,101.53 - - 1,101.53 1,101.53
(Rs. in Crores)
March 31, 2021
Financial Assets Notes Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Other Financial Assets
Derivative Financial Assets ii. 16.36] - 16.36 - 16,36

Notes :
| This includes mutual funds which are fair valued using quated prices and clasing NAV in the market,
Il This includes forward exchange contracts the fair value af the forward exchiange contract is determined using forward exchange rate at the balanca shest date.
Il Fair values of borrowings are based on discounted cash flow using a current borrawing rate. They are classified as Leval 3 values hisrarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including

own credit risk. The discounting factor used has been arrived at after adjusting the rate of interest for the financial liabilities by the difference in the Government Securities rates fram date of
Initial recognition to the reporting dates.




PIRAMAL PHARMA LIMITED
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

51 During the previous year, The Board of Directors (‘Board’) of the Company at their meeting held on June 26, 2020, had approved:
a. the Purchase of the pharmaceutical business (‘Pharma Business’) of the Holding Company 'Piramal Enterprises Limited', held by the

Holding Company directly and through its wholly owned subsidiaries., by the Company.

b. issue of such number of securities of the company, representing 20% paid up share capital of the company on a fully diluted basis to
CA Clover Intermediate II Investments (now known as CA Alchemy Investments) (“Carlyle”), an affiliated entity of CAP V Mauritius
Limited, an investment fund managed and advised by affiliated entities of The Carlyle Group Inc for the strategic growth investment.

This transaction was successfully closed on October 6th, 2020 on receipt of requisite approvals. As a result, the Company received

Rs.3,523.40 crores as consideration towards 20% equity investment from CA Alchemy Investments,

In accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 103, the purchase of pharma business being a comman control transaction (transaction
between a holding company (Piramal Enterprises Limited) and the Company), is accounted for at the carrying values and the financial
information has been drawn up with effect from March 4, 2020, being the date of incorporation of the Company. The difference between
the carrying value of the net assets of the Pharma Business and consideration paid has been recognised in Capital Reserve.

Particulars

Assets
Nan-Current Assets

-Property, Plant & Equipment 1,325.64
-Capital Work in Progress 57.78
-Intangible Assets 352.18
-Intangible Assets Under Development 62.08
-Right of Use Asset 6.18
Financial Assets:
-Investments 1,526.42
-Loans 24,51
-Other Financial Assets 11.89
Other Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Inventaries 458.22
Financlal Assets;
-Trade Receivables 491,16
-Other Financlal Assets 36.31
Other Current Assets 283.70
Total Assets (1)
Liabllities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabillties:
Lease Liability
Provisions
Current Liabilities
Financial Liatilities:
-Trade payables 456.90
-Other Financial Liabilities 31.51
Other Current Liabilities 39.92
Provisions 0.11
Total Liabilities (II)
Net value of Assets and liabilities as on March 4, 2020(1-11)
Less : Cansideration In the form of cash
Less : Consideration In the form of Share Capital issued (refer footnote to Statement of Cash flow)
Add : Securities Premium issued on shares above adjusted against capital reserve (refer footnote to
Statement of Cash flow)
Less : Deferred tax liability on acquisition
Capital reserve on March 4, 2020 (A)
Less : Cash balance not taken over (Including generated out of operatians for the period from March 4,
2020 to October 5, 2020), (B)
Capital reserve on Octeber 5, 2020 {A+B)

(Rs. In Crores)

1,803.86

1,562.82

35.92

1,269.39
4,671.99

1.44

62.43

528.44

592.31

4,079.68
(4.302.00)

(185.00)
174.33

159.01
(392.00)

(326.34)

(718.34)
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52 Trade Receivables ageing (#)

As at March 31, 2022

(Rs. in Crores)
Ageing of raceivables Not Due Lessthan 6 | 6 months -1| 1-2 Years 2-3 years Maore than 3 Total
manths year years
Undisputed Trade Receivables :
Considered Good 741.41 194,53 11,57 1.92 S .07 949,50
Credit impaired - - - 3.56 4.85 17.01 25.42
Total 741.41 194.53 11.57 5.48 4.85 17.08 974.92

As at March 31, 2021

{Rs. in Crores)
Ageing of receivables Not Due Less than 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years
Undisputed Trade Receivables :
Considered Good 5532.39 238.43 28.50 = 21.00 0.07 B41.48
Credit impaired = = 1.11 5.01 9,23 7.52 11.87
Disg i Trade Recei !
Cradit impaired 0.03 0,03
|
Total 552,39 238.46 29,61 5.01 31.32 7.59 864,38

# Where due date has not besn specified, ageing has been calculated basis transaction data,

53 Trade Payable Ageing

As at March 2022

Rs. in Crores)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Dus Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
yaar vears
(i) MSME 34.87 12,34 0.20 - 0.24 47.65
1) Others 120.51 124 66 2.17 1.41 3.44 252.19
Total 155.38 137.00 2.37 1.41 3.68 299.84

As at March 2021

Rs. in Crores)

Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Mot Dua Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
{i) MSME 12.07 14.17 D.02 .24 011 26,61
[0} Others 124.47 55.20 2.06 0.87 2.54 185,14
Total 136.54 69.37 1,08 1.11 2.65 211.75

Accrued expenses amaount to Rs, 315,36 Crores as at March 31,2022 (as al March 31,2021 - Rs, 372,37 Crores)
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54 Ageing for Capital work in-progress (Cwip)

i. Ageing for Capital work in-progress (CWIP) as at March 31, 2022
Rs. In Crores

Capital work in-progress (CWIP) Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 114.11 25.56 15.47 0.14 155.28

Ageing for Capital work in-progress (CWIP) as at March 31, 2021
Rs. In Crores

Capital work in-progress (CWIP) Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 55.93 2211 1.17 013 79.34

ii. Project wise details of CWIP project whase completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan

As at March 31, 2022 5 Rs. In Crores
Capital work in-progress (CWIP) To be c« leted in
Less than 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress
1. |Project 1 64,11 - - =
2. |Project 2 6.53 - - -
3. |Project 3 2.69 " #
4. |Project 4 2.44 - - -
5. |Project 5 2,17 i 5 &
6. |Project 6 2.05 - - -
7. |Project 7 1.60 p = 5
8. |Project 8 1.38 » = %
9. |Project 9 1.26 " . ¥
10.|Others 9.73 - = =
As at March 31, 2021 Rs. In Crores
Capital work in-progress (CWIP) To be completed in
Less than 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years Maore than 3 years
roj in
1. |Project 1 - 30.44 - -
2. |Project 2 3.52 = * =
3. |Project 3 3.0 - -
4. |Project 4 1.83 % - -
5. |Project 5 1.48 - - -
6. |Project 6 1.44 - - -
7. |Project 7 1.32 = 7 =
8. |Project 8 1.03 = = =
9. |Project 9 1.00 = ¥ =
10.|Others 10.24 1.69 = -
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Ageing for Intangible Assat Under Development (IAUD)

Ageing for Intangible Assets under Development (IAUD) as at March 31, 2022

Rs. In Crores

Intangible Assets under Development
(IAUD)

Amount in IAUD for a period of

Less than 1 year

1to 2 years

2to 3 years

More than 3 years Total

a. Projects in progress

12.01

8.58

6.55

22.68 49.82

Ageing for I ai A

under D

{IAUD) as at March 31, 2021

Rs. In Crores

I oA ts under D " T

(IAUD) g

Amount in IAUD for a perlod of

Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
a Projects in progress 11,15 7.53 11.35 11.63 41.66
Project wise details of IAUD project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan,
As at March 31, 2022 RSs. In Crores
Intangible Assets under Development To be ed in
(IAUD) Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 years
Proiects in orogress
1, Project 1 - 2.30 - =
2. Project 2 0.53 - - -
3 Project 3 0.35 = - -
4. Froject 4 0.20 - =
5. Project 5 0.20 - - -
6. |Others 0.99 = -
As at March 31, 2021 Rs. In Crores
Intangible Assets under Development To be ¢ d in
(IAUD) Less than 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 years
Proi =
1; Project 1 - - 1.93 -
2, Project 2 0.82 - * B
3. |Project3 0.53 = = #
4. |Project 4 - 0.29 - -
5. Project 5§ 0.28 n = =
6. Others 1.35 D.22 - -
Ratios
The ratios for the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2021 are as follows:
For the year For the period Variance
T April 01, 2021 March 04, 2020
No Particulars Numerator Denominator To To
y March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Audited Audited
i |Current Ratio Current Assels Current Liakbiliies 1.29 1.20 7.5%
Il |Debt Equity Ratio* Total Debt Total Equity Q.22 0.04 439.6%
iii |Debt Service Coverage Ratio® Profit befare Intarest, Tax (Interest Expenss on long 11,32 A 100.0%
and Exceptional itams term debt+ Principal
Repayment of lang tarm
Debt
v |Return on Equity Net Frofit after tax Average Shareholders 7.5% 13.8% -6.4%
Equity
v |Inventory Turncver Ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 111.01 134.72 -17.6%
vl |Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio Sales of Products and  |Average Trade 105.55 112.30 -2,4%
Services Receivable
vii |Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Total Purchases Average Trada 142.76 189.47 -24.7%)
Payables
will [Met eapital turnover Ratio™ Sales ar Products and  [Working Capital (1) 2,72 6.37 -57.4%
Services
ix |Net profit Ratio Profit after tax bafore |Revenue from 11.5% 18.8% -7.3%
exceptional items operatlons
% |Return on Capital Emplayed Earnings Bafore Capital Employed () 7.3% 1&.1% -6.9%
Interest and Taxes
¥ |Return on Investment Income generalted from|Closing Investment 3.3% 7.8% -4.6%
Investments

* The variance is due to borrowings during the current year.
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57 The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution ar any other lender.

58 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

59 The Company have not any such transaction which Is not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during

the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant pravisicns of the Income Tax Act,
1961,

B0 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency.

61 There are no material discrepancies between amount of current assets submitted to banks and financial Institutions in guarterly returns and amount
as per books of accounts.

62 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property,

63 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

64 The Company has transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, and
disclosed as under:

(Rs. In Crores)

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions | Balance outstanding as| Relationship with the
with struck-off Company| at March 31, 2022 Struck off company, if
any, to be disclosed
Central Agency & Services Private Limited Receivables 0.01 [Customer
Welink Smo India Private Limited Payable “|Vendor
EMS Networks Pyt Lid Payable *Wendor
Secureplus Allied Private Limited Payahle 0.03 |Vendaor
Apex Associates Private Limited Payable *[Vendor
Epic Attires Private Limited Payable *|Vendar
- (lig._lr! Crores)
Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions |Balance outstanding as| Relationship with the
with struck-off Company| at March 31, 2021 Struck off campany, if

any, to be disclosed

Central Agency & Services Private Limited Receivahles 0.02 |Customer
Office Bazaar Supplies Private Linited Payable 0.01 |Vendor
Welink Smao India Private Limited Payable *|Vendor
Ems Networks Put Lid Payable *[Vendor
Secureplus Allied Private Limited Payable 0.03 |Vendor
Apex Associates Private Limited Payable *|vVendor
|Epic Attires Private Limited Payable *Ivendor
Aurozon (India) Pyt Ltd Advance Paid 0.03 |Vendor
(Nagadi Consultants Pvt Ltd Advance Paid *|vendor

* Amounts are below rounding off norms adopted by the Company.
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65 The financial statements have been approved for issue by Company's Board of Directors an May 24, 2022,

Signature to note 1 to 65 of financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nandini Piramal
Chairperson
DIN : 00286092

4 A2

Vivek Valsaraj Tanya Sanish
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary i

Mumbai, May 24, 2022
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